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$GROUP PROFILE

Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited and its subsidiaries are recognised in the industry
as one of the world'’s largest circular knitted fabric manufacturers and has long been
a driving force in the global market through its vertically integrated operations
in spinning, knitting, dyeing, printing and finishing. The Group’s product range
also includes dyed yarns, sewing threads and garments. As a major fabric supplier
to garment manufacturers in over 40 countries that supply to internationally
renowned retail brands, Fountain Set’s worldwide sales reached HKS$5.5 billion

(US$699 million) in the financial year 2009.

Headquartered in Hong Kong and listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited (SEHK: 420) has production facilities in
the PRC, Sri Lanka and Indonesia, with marketing and representative offices in 8

countries and a global staff force of approximately 15,700.

To learn more about Fountain Set, please visit www.fshl.com
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Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. HA Chung Fong (Chairman)
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor

Mr. LAU Hong Yon

Dr. YEN Gordon

Non-executive Directors
Mr. HA Hon Kuen
Mrs. FUNG YEH Yi Hao, Yvette

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. NG Kwok Tung

Mr. WONG Kwong Chi

Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, SBS, JP

Company Secretary
Mr. WONG Kin Man

Registered Office & Principal Place of Business
Block A, 7/F, Eastern Sea Industrial Building

29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong

Website

www.fshl.com

Principal Bankers
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Solicitors
Vivien Chan & Co.

Auditor

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

Share Registrar

Tricor Secretaries Limited

26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
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HONG KONG &8
Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited
BHEX (£8) FRAH
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PRODUCTION FACILITY « 4 FEE 3R i

CHINA
COTTON SPINNING 1845

Jiangmen Huilian Textile Company Limited
SIFTEMSEERAR

Kaiping Hui Hua Textiles Limited
BFEEHBERAR

Shaoguan City Huiye Textiles Limited
HEATEXSHERARE

KNITTING & DYEING & #8 )

Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited
IREEHEBRLR
Yancheng Fuhui Textiles Limited

HHEESRBRLR

KNITTING, DYEING & PRINTING #4328 % ENTE
Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles

Printing & Dyeing Co., Ltd.
ROHBEHANRERAR

GARMENT MANUFACTURING &4
Dongguan Fuyuen Garment Limited

RERRARERAA

Dong Guan Hai Xing Apparel Co., Ltd.
REEREBRLT

Dongguan Fuquan Garment Co., Ltd.

REBRAEARBRLT

Dong Guan FuYi Apparel Co., Ltd.

REREREFRAA

Ningbo Young Top Garments Co., Ltd.

ERAMHERBRLF

Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited

SIRBEESHBERAR

Sugian Young Top Garments Co., Ltd

BERAMHKERAR

SEWING THREADS MANUFACTURING £ 4 434E &E

Dongguan Goldlink Thread Factory Co., Ltd.
RESERBBRLTF

TEXTILE MACHINERY MANUFACTURING %5 & BéAs 4 2
Jiangyin Jintian Machinery Limited

TRREABMARALR

JAKARTA BB hniE
GARMENT MANUFACTURING 27

PT. Sandang Mutiara Cemerlang
PT. Higon International

SRI LANKA T 2B+
KNITTING & DYEING &t R &

Ocean Lanka (Private) Limited

EEHE (AA) BRAT
& N
TRADING OFFICE - ¥ =5 =

CHINA /R
SALES OF DYED FABRICS & YARNS 77 & 4D 85 &

Shenzhen Faun Textiles Limited
RIBHHERERAT

Shanghai Fuhui Textiles Trading Co., Ltd.
LERESHHBESERAT

HONG KONG &

RAW MATERIALS SOURCING R HREE
Highscene Limited

ERBERAF

SALES OF DYED FABRICS & YARNS 77 & 4D 45 &
Fountain Set Limited

BHEXERAR

SALES OF SEWING THREADS #1485 &

Goldlink Thread Limited
SESHAMRRA

SALES OF GARMENTS X84 &
Hiway Textiles Limited

BESHBERDE

Sri Lanka e
ﬁﬁi%ff Singaporge] 5
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SUgian

T Vg ¢

F¥a

OceanStar Textiles International Limited
BEFGHERERAR

Triumph Luck Limited

HEERAA

MACAO J8F3
RAW MATERIALS SOURCING JFRHERES
Prosperlink (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited

EE (RFIBEERXRE) BRAR

TORONTO Z &%
SALES OF DYED FABRICS & GARMENTS &7 K f X84 &
Fountain Set Textiles (Ontario) Limited

BHAA (Z4) ARIE

VANCOUVER ;&8 2

SALES OF DYED FABRICS & GARMENTS
B RRIHE

Fountain Set Textiles (B.C.) Limited
BEHE B.C)BRAT

%
MARKETING /

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE -
mISHEENSE / KRE

NEW YORK £R#J
Fountain Set (U.S.A.) Inc.
BEHBX USA)BRAT

HO CHI MINH CITY #75 B3
Fountain Set (Singapore) Pte. Limited
- Vietnam Representative Office
BHEX G BABRAR
- BEARE

SEOUL HEl
Fountain Set Limited
- Korean Liaison Office

FHEXERAE - BERRE

SINGAPORE 37 i3
Fountain Set (Singapore) Pte. Limited
BHEZE G BABRAR

#  Chinese names are only translations of their official English names. In case of inconsistencies, the English names shall prevail.

PYEBERBREENRANEBZEL - MBKRE  BIURXEBBE -




%
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FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS

Annual Report 2009

M RGEHRE

2009 2008 Changes
HK$Mil HKSMil 2E
BEET HEET
Operating Results EIEEE
Revenue 3 5,451.5 6,103.0 -10.7%
Loss =
Total BE 48.9 396.5 -87.7%
Loss margin [ kS 0.9% 6.5%
Loss per share (cents) SREE (L)
- Basic —&ER 6.2 49.9 -87.7%
Dividends B’ 2
(after inclusion of proposed final dividend) (BERERAZRPEREER)
Per share (cents) R () 0.0 1.0 -100.0%
Dividend payout ratio KB = N/A N/A
Financial Position at Year End REERER 2B BARR
(after inclusion of proposed final dividend) (EEEHMAZREREER)
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,568.4 2,173.8 -27.8%
Total assets EERE 6,054.2 6,000.2 0.9%
Long-term bank borrowings RERITEE 1,489.0 1,732.1 -14.0%
Bank borrowings IRITIEE 2,329.5 2,283.9 2.0%
Net bank borrowings IRITEEFE 1,527.0 1,598.4 -4.5%
Total liabilities BERE 3,660.3 3,552.1 3.0%
Tangible net worth BRFE 2,393.9 2,448.2 -2.2%
Net asset value per share (HKS) EREEFECET) 3.01 3.08 -2.2%
Capital expenditure BEARMX 279.5 524.6 -46.7%
(after inclusion of interest capitalised) (BEBREEEEEZRERER)
Financial Statistics B # & 5t
(after inclusion of proposed final dividend) (BEERMZREREEA)
Current ratio TENEE = 1.84 2.46
Long-term bank borrowings ratio REIRITEELLER 0.62 0.71
Bank borrowings ratio RITEELLR 0.97 0.93
Net bank borrowings ratio IRITEEFELE 0.64 0.65
Gearing ratio ERBELE 1.53 1.45
Return before tax on average equity BREAIZFEIRRESERE -1.5% -14.7%
Interest cover ratio FE = 0.19 -3.51
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FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS BARE R #isHiE =

Revenue, Profit/(Loss) and Profit/(Loss) Margin
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY BAFEZ =

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mEWER
Year ended 31st August,
BENA=+—HLFE

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FHET
Revenue L 6,636,298 7,134,788 7,022,991 6,103,045 5,451,492
Profit (loss) from ordinary activities HEZEF (FIE) 224,440 387,193 228,010 (371,125) 8,280
Share of results of jointly AL HEZEH
controlled entities MBES (409) - - - =
Reversal of impairment loss on HE SIS
amounts due from jointly BT R FRIE Y
controlled entities VERIEE =P A 2,163 1,040 540 21,907 =
Profit (loss) before taxation BRBLATER (B518) 226,194 388,233 228,550 (349,218) 8,280
Income tax expense FrsRiZ (26,107) (41,145) (16,240) (9,179) (12,475)
Profit (loss) for the year =EERER (FE) 200,087 347,088 212,310 (358,397) (4,195)
Attributable to: it
Equity holders of the Company KARERIFTEAN 163,490 306,772 167,481 (396,451) (48,928)
Minority interests DYREER 36,597 40,316 44,829 38,054 44,733
200,087 347,088 212,310 (358,397) (4,195)




FINANCIAL SUMMARY BAFRZ i =

EEE¥E(RE)ARSS

—BEAEER P

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET HREEERAER
At 31st August,
RNB=+—8H
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
HK$’000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FrET FET FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,364,403 2,263,256 2,347,435 2,337,638 2,619,839
Current assets RBEE 3,657,541 3,820,430 4,303,204 3,662,577 3,434,383
Current liabilities REBAE 1,298,030 1,248,522 1,781,472 1,488,830 1,865,990
Net current assets REBEEFE 2,359,511 2,571,908 2,521,732 2,173,747 1,568,393
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERRE
aE 4,723,914 4,835,164 4,869,167 4,511,385 4,188,232
Non-current liabilities FRBERE 1,944,698 1,835,514 1,784,711 1,812,191 1,639,475
Net assets BEEFHE 2,779,216 2,999,650 3,084,456 2,699,194 2,548,757
Capital and reserves EARRGEE
Share capital [N 158,802 158,802 158,802 158,802 158,802
Reserves 1 2,427,001 2,639,513 2,706,858 2,289,353 2,235,079
Equity attributable to equity AATEEFEA
holders of the Company EibER 2,585,803 2,798,315 2,865,660 2,448,155 2,393,881
Minority interests DYRRERS 193,413 201,335 218,796 251,039 154,876
Total equity EEEE 2,779,216 2,999,650 3,084,456 2,699,194 2,548,757
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EEiR &

FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the Board, | would like to report to shareholders the results
of the Group for the year ended 31st August, 2009. The revenue was
approximately HK$5,451,492,000, a decrease of 10.7% over last year. Loss
attributable to shareholders amounted to approximately HK$48,928,000.
Net loss margin under review was 0.9%, a decrease of 5.6 percentage
point over the net loss margin in the same period last year. Basic loss per
share was HK 6.2 cents, compared to basic loss per share of HK 49.9 cents

in 2008.

After one of the most difficult years ended 31st August, 2008 in Fountain
Set’s history, the year ended 31st August, 2009, although continued
to be difficult, saw gradual recovery especially in the second half
of the financial year. Through a series of proactive and appropriate
management actions, we reduced the proportion of administrative
expenses to turnover, distribution and selling expenses to turnover,
when compared with the previous financial year. The Group maintained a
healthy financial position for the period under review. As at 31st August,
2009, the Group’s total cash and bank balances approximately amounted
to HK$802,542,000. The management is confident that we will be able to

continue to improve the Group'’s overall performance in the future.

During the year under review, due to the weakened demand caused
mainly by the global economic turmoil, subsequent recovery was also
slower than expected. Our turnover decreased by 10.7% compared
with the previous financial year. In addition, the overall Group’s factory
utilization rate and operation efficiency were not yet normalized due to
the delays in buying decisions by our clients as the consumer market
was unstable hence making it more difficult to foresee the market trend.
However, our turnover in the second half of the year under review
increased by 19.1% over the first half of the year and is only slightly
lower than the second half of the previous financial year, indicating a

gradual recovery.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT = EiRE

In addition, the Group has set up a sustainability and corporate social
responsibility committee in 2009 with the aim to enhance energy
efficiency, mitigating emission, and provide sustainability initiatives.
Numerous green programs have been planned and executed in factories
and offices, such as replacement of energy saving devices, recycle and
reduce wastes and water, process re-engineering and actively promote

green culture within the Group.

DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to pay any final dividend for the year ended
31st August, 2009. As a result, no dividend was issued for this year,

compared to HK 1 cent per share of last year.

AWARDS
This year, the Group's subsidiary, Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles

Printing & Dyeing Co., Ltd. was accredited "2008 Advanced Energy Saving
Unit in Guangdong Province” by the People’s Government of Guangdong
Province. Another Group’s subsidiary, Ocean Lanka (Private) Limited
was accredited GOTS (Global Organic Textile Standard) certificate by the
Control Union Certification based in the Netherlands. In addition, the
Group was also accredited "2008 Water Management of the Hang Seng
Pearl River Delta Environmental Category Award” jointly presented by
the Federation of Hong Kong Industries (FHKT) and Hang Seng Bank in

2009, attributing the Group’s efforts in the environmental contribution.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Following a difficult year for the textiles and apparel industry struck
by the global financial crisis in the calendar year of 2008, some signs
of gradual stabilization started to emerge in the later part of year of
2009 as the overall market demand and consumer confidence appear to
have bottomed out. However, recent cost increase driven by inflation in
fuel and material prices may hamper the recovery of an already fragile
market, resulting in an uncertain outlook for the industry over the next
year. On the back of weak retail sales results coupled with economic
uncertainty for the year 2010, many retailers and brands maintain
rather conservative plans for the coming year. Looking forward, the
macro uncertainty continues to cloud market transparency and present
challenges for the textiles and apparel supply chain. In respond, the
Group is implementing various measures to tackle the challenges ahead

and is determined to achieve better results in the next year.

The Group’s latest fabric mill, Yancheng Fuhui Textiles Limited, located
in the Yancheng City of the Jiangsu province of China will provide an
enormous potential for future expansion of the Group especially when
market turnaround. At the same time, the proximity between Yancheng
and Jiangyin fabric mills will be able to share resources and overhead
costs efficiently. Partial production has commenced in Yancheng in
October 2009 with a plan to gradually increase output during the second
half of the financial year. Many of the machineries installed at this
facility are supplied by the Group'’s subsidiary Jiangyin Jintian Machinery
Limited. During the first six to twelve months of operation, dyed fabrics
production capacity will gradually increase to around two million pounds
per month. Nevertheless, it is common for any new factories to go
through 6 to 12 months of start up period before reaching its intended
efficiency. As a result, operation performance of Yancheng is expected to

be gradually improved during the second half of financial year 2010.

As the Group will continue to strategically target new clients in China
as the local consumer preference shift towards better product quality,
safety and innovations, our domestic sales have shown continuous
improvement since the launch of the “fabric by Fountain Set™ brand
which was actively showcased in various trade shows in China over the
past few years. We anticipate that our domestic sales for textiles and

apparel in China will continue to increase over the next few years.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT = EiRE

On 13th November, 2009, the Group announced that it has entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with a third party for disposal
of properties in Tin's Centre Block No. 9 at a consideration of
HK$122,800,000. Tin's Centre Block No. 9 is situated at Block No 9, No 3B
Hung Cheung Road, Tuen Mun, New Territories, Hong Kong. Properties
to be disposed comprise approximately 84% of the Tin's Centre Block
No. 9. Tin’s Centre Block No. 9 has been used for storage and rental in
recent years. We believe this to be a good opportunity for the Group to
realise our investment in these properties and reallocate the resources
for strengthening the Group’s financial position and supporting the
principal business operations. With reference to the net book value of
the properties as at 28th February, 2009 and after deducting relevant
costs, the gain of the disposal of the properties is approximately
HK$95,030,000. The Group intends to use such net proceeds for bank

borrowings repayments and working capital.

Sales of garment in the second half of the financial year have dropped by
7.1% when compared with the previous year as a result of the weakened
market. As noted in the interim report, since the garment export remains
volatile and highly competitive, the Group will continue to consolidate

its garment production capacity in the next financial year.

The Group will also further optimize its operations and infrastructure
to cope with the current market conditions while maintaining a solid
foundation to support future growth. These initiatives include the
ongoing review of management functions such as cost and performance
measurement, risk management and corporate governance. The Group
will also focus on reducing the net gearing ratio to a more sustainable
level over the next few years by improving profitability as well as
implementations of tighter control over cost, working capital and capital

expenditure.

FEHEE(EE)FRELT —zsisseg

R=ZZZAFE+-B+=H KEELHHEHHE
—EZHOEERN—BEEHR EEU
122,800,000 T 2 KB HEHBHKHOLE N
EYE - BRPOFENENREBH AL
HEBRENE - HREEZYWEBTENH84%Z
HEKHRLENE - AERAKPOLENERER
EREH SEMEEGE SRERHEETZVEN
BREMNGERHE UKEFREHAE - AUN
BAKEEMBRR  UARZBFEEEBEF-
BREZVER-_ZSTANF_BA=-F+/\BZEKE
FEILMNRAEABERXE  ZEXS B 24
Uy %= 49 495,030,000 7T o B ET B A L IEFT S
HIEFHEAEEERTERREAEEES -

EHmERERAE BEFLHE  MRESHEE
MRFENTHEFETET71% MhHHE AR
g B H OMANE - WA BRFHIL
SEBET —MRFERBERSHERREERD °

SETHERABLLELEETHEERRERRE - U
BEESEAMNTSRALERSIERERRENER
EER SUREEBREEREEPFHRAEM
BRER BBEERCEXERSEBRINR
SEEREIRNERRBERN  BBRERF
B UREBRREENKA EBEAMER
X zZd UREFEFAEBLREEAR
BIERIKF -




FOUNTAIN SET (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  Annual Report 2009

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT EEiR &

Based on the current assessment, the Group expects the industry
environment in the coming financial year to remain challenging and
maintains a conservative view on the Group’s performance. However,
with our strategically located fabric mills in Dongguan, Jiangsu and
Sri Lanka as well as the growth in domestic sales in China, we are well
positioned to increase our market share following consolidation of the
supply chain and when market demand gradually recovers in the future.
Therefore, we are relatively more optimistic on the business outlook for

the longer term.
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On behalf of the Board

HA Chung Fong

Chairman

Hong Kong
14th December, 2009
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &M Est i X

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the loss of the Group was approximately
HK$48,928,000, a decrease of 5.6 percentage point when compared
with the net loss margin in last year. The Gross Profit margin also
increased slightly due to enhanced factory utilization rate and decrease
in significant cost items such as material and energy compared with
previous year as well as the increase in rebate of export related value
added tax in China. However, the Group’s operation efficiency is still not
yet normalized because of the weakened market. Furthermore, the Group
received first installment amounted RMB30,000,000 after the disposal of
a Group's subsidiary, Dongguan Fuan Textiles Limited’s properties during

the financial year of 2008/2009.

Production and Sales of Dyed Fabrics, Sewing Threads and Yarns

During the year under review, revenue from the production and sales
of dyed fabrics, sewing threads and yarns reached approximately
HK$4,675,746,000, a decrease of 13.0% as compared with last year, and

accounted for 85.8% of the Group's total revenue.

Production and Sales of Garments
Annual revenue from the production and sales of garments was
approximately HK$775,746,000, an increase of 6.3% as compared with

last year, and accounted for 14.2% of the Group's total revenue.

Analysis by Customer Geographical Regions

The Group’s major customers were garment manufacturers located in
Asia and accounted for approximately 93.6% of the Group’s total revenue,
a slight increase of 0.3 percentage points when compared with 93.3%
of last year. The remaining 6.4% was generated from sales to customers
based in America and Europe. A more substantial growth was achieved
in business with customers based in China, accounted for approximately
14.4% of the Group’s total revenue. The Group has established local
marketing offices or fabric mills and strategically targeted China as our

potential growth country in the past few years.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Information

At 31st August, 2009, the Group's total assets amounted to approximately
HK$6,054,222,000, representing an increase of approximately
HK$54,007,000 over last year. Total assets included non-current assets
of approximately HK$2,619,839,000 and current assets of approximately
HK$3,434,383,000. The above assets were financed by current
liabilities of approximately HK$1,865,990,000, non-current liabilities of
approximately HK$1,639,475,000, minority interests of approximately
HK$154,876,000 and equity attributable to shareholders of approximately
HK$2,393,881,000.

The Group met its funding requirements in its usual course of operation
by cash flows from operations, as well as long-term and short-term
borrowings. The capital expenditure was mainly financed by long-term

borrowings.
Bank borrowings totally increased by approximately HK$45,592,000 and
the total amount of short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash

increased by approximately HK$119,615,000.

At 31st August, 2009, the principal financial ratios were as follows:
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2009 2008
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Gearing Ratio ExBEHE 1.53 1.45
Bank Borrowing Ratio RITEELE R 0.97 0.93
Net Bank Borrowing Ratio RITEEFAELLE 0.64 0.65

The sales and the purchase of raw materials of the Group are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and Renminbi. Bank
borrowings are also denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and
Renminbi and interests are mainly charged on a floating rate basis. In
addition, the Group mainly operates in China and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from Renminbi exposure. The fluctuations in the
US dollars and Renminbi have always been the concern of the Group.
In order to mitigate the foreign currency risk and interest rate risk, the
Group will enter into appropriate hedging arrangements in accordance

with the Group’s risk management policies.
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Capital Expenditure

During the year, the Group invested approximately HK$274,236,000
(2008: HK$520,586,000) in the addition of property, plant and equipment
and prepaid lease payments. The Group expects that capital expenditure

for the next financial year will be approximately HK$260 million.

Inventory

The Group’s inventory approximately amounted to HK$1,180,756,000 as
of 31st August, 2009 (2008: HK$1,465,681,000), representing inventory
turnover period of 79 days (2008: 88 days).

Employees and Emolument Policies

At 31st August, 2009, the Group had approximately 15,700 full time
employees. The Group’s emolument policies are formulated on the
performance of individual employee and on the basis of the salary trends
in the various regions, and will be reviewed regularly. Subject to the
Group's profitability, the Group may also distribute discretionary bonus

to its employees as an incentive for their contribution to the Group.

The Group has established a share option scheme for its employees,
and also provides regular training courses and subsidies for continuing
education so as to improve the skills of its employees with respect to

production, selling and management.

BEREX

RAEFE  AEECDIRE#9274,236,0008 7T (=
ZTZ )\ F © 520,586,00058 7T ) LAIE I 4D 5 - 128
REBENACGHERBE SEEHAT —HEHF
£ & 4B X #9260,000,00058 T °

TE&
AEBR-_ZEAFENAZ+—HZEFENE
1,180,756,0005% 7T (= & & /\ £ : 1,465,681,000
B REREFEREHR7IB (ZEENF:
88H) °

BERMESBIR

EER-ZETNFNA=+—-HAZ2RBEEA
A R15700A 0 MEBNESHSBEXLRIE
BREEN TERBER S EH B ZMmE S
EEBRN EETSREEEZRBABER B
BERRIEATFEEUSBBMPEEE 2SR -

SEARERE-—EARETE  TERHEE
HIFIREREBERSE  UARERSREZE
B HEREEKE-




FOUNTAIN SET (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  Annual Report 2009

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has consistently adopted the Code of Corporate
Governance (the "Code”) promulgated by The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) as guidelines to reinforce our
corporate governance principles during the year. This report describes

how the Company has applied the principles.

The Company has complied throughout the year with the Code
provisions except that, with respect to the Code provision A.2.1, the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer ("CEQ”) were performed by
the same individual. Considered reasons are provided in the section of

“Chairman and Chief Executive Officer”.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
board of directors (the "Board”). The Board has delegated the day-to-day
management of the Company’s business to the executive management
team, and focus its attention on matters affecting the Company’s overall
strategic policies, finances and shareholders. At 31st August, 2009, the
Board comprised nine members, consisting of four executive directors,
two non-executive directors and three independent non-executive
directors. The profile of all directors, including chairman, executive
directors, non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors are set out on pages 22 to 25. The relationship among members
of the Board (including financial, business, family or other material or

relevant relationships, if any) are also disclosed.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”), and considers all of the independent non-executive

directors to be independent.

Five Board meetings were held during the financial year. Directors
actively participate in each meeting in person, via telephone or video-
conferencing. Directors give and receive reports on the activities of the
operating divisions and present papers supporting decisions which
require the Board approval. The Board consents are given by-vote at the

Board meetings.
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The dates of the 2009 regular Board meetings were determined in 2008
and any amendments to this schedule were notified to all directors at
least 14 days before the meeting. Suitable arrangements are in place
to allow directors to include items in the agenda for regular Board

meetings.

If a director has a conflict of interest in a transaction or proposal to be
considered by the Board and which the Board has determined to be
material, the individual director declares his interest and is required
to abstain from voting. The matter is considered at a Board meeting
attended by independent non-executive directors who have no material

interest in the transaction.

Details of the attendance of directors at these Board meetings and at two
other Board committees (the Audit Committee and the Remuneration

Committee) are set out in the following table :
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Meetings Attended/Meetings Held
HERY, EERH

Audit Remuneration

Name of director Board Committee Committee

EENE BEEg ERZEEY FMEEE

Executive directors HITEE

Mr. HA Chung Fong ENFEE 5/5

Mr. HA Kam On, Victor BiRREE 5/5

Mr. LAU Hong Yon MEREE 5/5 0/0*

Dr. YEN Gordon BEHELT 5/5

Mr. WAI Yick Man BREREE 4/4 2/2¢
(resigned on 8th June, 2009) (R=ZZNFARBENBEE)

Non-executive directors FHITEE

Mrs. FUNG YEH Yi Hao, Yvette BEEE L 5/5 2/2

Mr. HA Hon Kuen EERELE 5/5

Independent non-executive directors ¥ FEHITEE

Mr. NG Kwok Tung HEREE 5/5 4/4 2/2

Mr. WONG Kwong Chi EX-3-% 5/5 3/4 2/2

Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, BXREEE 5/5 4/4 2/2

Anthony, SBS, JP IREFEE  AF#L

# Mr. LAU Hong Yon replaced Mr. WAI Yick Man as member of Remuneration

Committee with effect from 8th June, 2009.
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All directors have access to the services of the company secretary who
regularly updates the Board on governance and regulatory matters. Any
director, wishing to do so in the furtherance of his or her duties, may
take independent professional advice (through the Chairman) at the
Company'’s expense. The availability of professional advice extends to the

Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

Minutes of Board meetings are taken by the company secretary and,
together with any supporting documents, are available to all directors.
Draft and final versions of the minutes are sent to all directors for their

comment and record respectively.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established two committees, the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, which adhere to the principles, procedures
and arrangements set out above. Their terms of reference were approved
by the Board. The respective Committee secretary takes full minutes of
the meetings of these committees and the work of these committees is

reported to the Board regularly.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the Code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and CEO should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. The
division of responsibilities between the chairman and CEO should be
clearly established and set out in writing. Mr. HA Chung Fong is presently
the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company. Having considered
the current business operation and nature of the Company, the Board is
of the view that Mr. HA acting as both the roles of chairman and CEO is
in the best interest of the Company. The Board will review this situation

periodically.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the existing non-executive directors, including independent non-
executive directors, were previously appointed with specific terms, and
the terms were extended for one year up to 31st August, 2010. They are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles of Association

of the Company (the “Articles”).
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code”) as its own code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific enquiry
of all directors, the Company confirms that all directors have complied
with the required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31st August, 2009.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee for the
purposes of making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure for directors and senior management.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee have been
reviewed by the Board with reference to the Code and are posted on the

Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee presently comprises five directors,
including the three independent non-executive directors, Mrs. FUNG YEH
Yi Hao, Yvette (non-executive director) and Mr. LAU Hong Yon (executive

director). The Committee is chaired by Mr. WONG Kwong Chi.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year and
detail of attendance is shown in the table on page 17. The work of
the Remuneration Committee during the year included the following

matters:

. make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of
non-executive directors for the year ended 31st August, 2009.
The Remuneration Committee has considered factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions elsewhere

in the Group and desirability of performance-based remuneration;

review and approve remuneration and performance-based
remuneration scheme of executive directors from time to time by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board

from time to time; and

. ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in

deciding his own remuneration.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

According to the Articles, the Board shall have power from time to time
and at any time to appoint any person as a director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board. A director appointed by the
Board is subject to re-election by shareholders at the next following
general meeting of the Company. The nomination should be taken into
consideration of the nominee’s skills and experience appropriate for the

requirements of the Company’s business.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31st August, 2009, the fees charged by the

Company’s auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services amounted
to approximately HK$4,632,000 and HK$2,910,000 (include non-audit
service fee of approximately HK$1,038,000 in relation to very substantial
disposal and major and connected transaction as stated in the circular

dated 30th July, 2009) respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee for the purposes
of reviewing and providing supervision over the Company’s financial
reporting process and internal controls. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee have been revised on 1st January, 2009 with reference

to the Code and are posted on the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee presently comprises the three independent non-

executive directors of the Company and is chaired by Mr. NG Kwok Tung.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year and detail
of attendance is shown in the table on page 17. The work of the Audit

Committee during the year included of the following matters:

. provide recommendation to the Board on the reappointment of
the external auditors, and to approve the audit fee and terms of

engagement of the external auditors;

. review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standard, and discuss with the external auditors
before the audit commences, the nature and scope of the audit and

reporting obligations;
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monitor integrity of financial statements, interim report and annual
report, and to review significant financial reporting judgments

contained in them;

. review financial controls, internal controls and risk management

systems;

discuss with the management the system of internal controls
and ensure that the management has discharged its duty to have
an effective internal control system including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and

budget;

. ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors,
and to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately
resourced and has appropriate standing within the Company,
and to review and monitor the effectiveness of the internal audit

function;
. review financial and accounting policies and practices; and

review the external auditors’ management letter, any material
queries raised by the auditors to management in respect of the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and

management’s response.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
ACCOUNTS

The directors acknowledge the responsibilities for preparing the
accounts of the Company and the external auditors’ statement about

their reporting responsibilities is set out on pages 36 and 37.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has kept the Company’s system of internal controls under
review to ensure its effectiveness and convened meetings regularly to

discuss financial, operational and risk management control.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

DIRECTORS
Mr. HA Chung Fong

Chairman and Managing Director

Director of various subsidiaries of the Group

Aged 71, is the founder of the Group. Mr. HA is also the Honourable
Chairman of The Hong Kong General Chamber of Textiles Limited and
Honourary Life Chairman of Textiles and Clothing Industry Association of
Kai Ping City. He has been accredited as Honourary Citizen of Dongguan
City, Kai Ping City, Enping City and Xinhui City in the PRC. Mr. HA is also
an Honourable Professor of Xi‘an University of Engineering Science &
Technology. He also served on various trade, industrial and educational
advisory panels in Hong Kong. Mr. HA is the father of Mr. HA Hon Kuen,
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor and Ms. HA Kam Yee and is the father-in-law of Dr.
YEN Gordon.

Mr. HA Kam On, Victor

Executive Director and Group General Manager

Director of various subsidiaries of the Group

Aged 44, joined the Group in 2002 as General Manager of the garment
business and became an Executive Director in 2004. He was promoted
to his current position in 2009. He possesses a degree in Production
Engineering from Coventry University, UK. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
HA has over 10 years of operations and management experience in the
garment trading and manufacturing industry. Mr. HA is the son of Mr. HA

Chung Fong.

Mr. LAU Hong Yon

Executive Director

Director of various subsidiaries of the Group

Aged 60, joined the Group’s accounting department in 1984 and was
promoted to Group Financial Controller in 1990. He was then promoted
to his current position in 1996. Mr. LAU holds a Master degree in Business
Analysis and a Bachelor of Science Degree in Economics from Lancaster
University, UK and University of Salford, UK respectively. Mr. LAU held
senior information technology and accounting positions in various

companies in Hong Kong prior to joining the Group.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. YEN Gordon

Executive Director

Director of various subsidiaries of the Group

Aged 39, joined the Group in 1999 as the Assistant to Chairman and was
promoted to his current position in 2004. He serves as a Member of the
Henan Province Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of the People’s Republic of China. He is also the Chairman
of The Hong Kong Association of Textile Bleachers, Dyers, Printers
and Finishers; an Executive Vice Chairman of The Hong Kong General
Chamber of Textiles; a Vice Chairman of Textile Council of Hong Kong; a
Vice Director General of China Knitting Industry Association; a Director
of The Hong Kong Research Institute of Textiles and Apparel Limited;
a Director of GS1 HK Limited; a Director of the Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Chamber of Commerce; a General Committee member of the Chamber of
Hong Kong Listed Companies and an Honorary Advisor of The Vocational
Training Council. Dr. YEN also serves as an Independent Non-executive
Director of Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited, a Hong Kong listed
company. He holds a Bachelor degree in Manufacturing Engineering
from Boston University, USA; a Master degree in Business Administration
from McGill University, Canada and a Doctorate degree in Business
Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Prior to
joining the Group, Dr. YEN has extensive experience in the infrastructure
sector. Dr. YEN is the son-in-law of Mr. HA Chung Fong and is the spouse
of Ms. HA Kam Yee.

Mr. HA Hon Kuen

Non-executive Director, Director of two subsidiaries of the Group

Board Member

Aged 45, joined the Group in 1993 and joined the Group’s Board in
1996 as a Non-executive Director. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. HA had
several years’ working experience in the securities and finance field.
He holds a Bachelor degree in Science from the University College of

Swansea, UK. Mr. HA is the son of Mr. HA Chung Fong.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mrs. FUNG YEH Yi Hao, Yvette

Non-executive Director

Board Member, Member of Remuneration Committee

Aged 48, joined the Group’s Board in 2000 as a Non-executive Director.
Mrs. FUNG is a Director of Hsin Chong International Holdings Ltd. She
also serves as an Independent Non-executive Director of Hong Kong
Catering Management Limited and Tai Ping Carpets International Limited,
both of them are listed company in Hong Kong. From September 2003 to
September 2008, she was the Deputy Chairman and Executive Director
of Synergis Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed company. She holds a
B.A. Degree in Psychology from Standford University, USA, a M.B.A. from
University of California, Los Angeles, USA and a J.D. from Standford Law
School, USA. Mrs. FUNG has over 10 years experience in legal practice in
both international law firms and corporations. She is a Member of the
Court of The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, a Member
of the Board of Managers at Hong Kong International School, and a

Council Member of the Hong Kong Society for the Deaf.

Mr. NG Kwok Tung

Independent Non-executive Director

Board Member, Chairman of Audit Committee,

Member of Remuneration Committee

Aged 59, joined the Group’s Board in 1993 as an Independent Non-
executive Director. Mr. NG is a practising accountant and also sits on
the boards of several Hong Kong listed companies. He holds a Bachelor
of Commerce Degree and a Licentiate in Accountancy from McGill
University, Canada and a Diploma in Chinese Law from the University of
East Asia, Macao. Mr. NG is a Member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, Institute of Chartered Accountants of British
Columbia, Order of Chartered Accountants of Quebec, The Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants, The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong,
The Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors and the Society of

Registered Financial Planners.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. WONG Kwong Chi

Independent Non-executive Director

Board Member, Member of Audit Committee,

Chairman of Remuneration Committee

Aged 58, joined the Group’s Board in 1998 as an Independent Non-
executive Director. Mr. WONG is the Managing Partner of Asian
Global Capital and also sits on the boards of several Hong Kong listed
companies. He has extensive experience in the capital investment
market. Mr. WONG holds a Bachelor degree in Science and a Master
degree in Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong. Mr. WONG served as the Chairman of Hong Kong Venture Capital
And Private Equity Association, the Vice Chairman of The Hong Kong
Electronic Industries Association and the Vice President of Hong Kong
Auto Parts Industry Association. He is also a Member of Hong Kong
Young Industrialists Council and the Honorary Treasurer of Hong Kong

Critical Components Manufacturers Association.

Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, SBS, JP

Independent Non-executive Director

Board Member, Member of Audit Committee,

Member of Remuneration Committee

Aged 59, joined the Group’s Board in 2004 as an Independent Non-
executive Director. Mr. CHOW has been practicing as a solicitor in Hong
Kong for the past 29 years and is a partner in the law firm, Peter C.
Wong, Chow & Chow. He also sits on the boards of two other Hong Kong
listed companies as well as the board of The Link Management Limited
which manages The Link Real Estate Investment Trust. Mr. CHOW is the
Chairman of the Process Review Panel for the Securities and Futures
Commission, a member of Personal Data (Privacy) Advisory Committee
and a member of Appeal Board on Public Meetings and Processions. He
is also a Member of National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference and a Member of the Board of Stewards of The

Hong Kong Jockey Club.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. YIM To Hung

Director and General Manager of various subsidiaries of the Group

Aged 46, joined the Group in 1982 and since then, he has dedicated
his entire career in the textile production and management. Mr. YIM is
responsible for the overall management of various subsidiaries of the
Group. He has over 25 years of solid experience in the textiles industry in

which over 15 years’ management experience in the PRC.

Mr. CHAN Yuk Yin

Director and General Manager of various subsidiaries of the Group

Aged 46, joined the Group in 1990. Between 1990 and 1997, Mr. CHAN
served in the Group’s sales department and was promoted to his current
position in 1997. Mr. CHAN is responsible for the overall management of
various subsidiaries of the Group. He has over 20 years’ experience in the
textile industry and holds a Higher Diploma in Textile Technology from

the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Ms. HA Kam Yee

Sourcing Director of the Group’s Material Sourcing Department

Aged 39, joined the Group’s material sourcing department in 1994 and
became the head of the department in 2002. Ms. HA is responsible
for monitoring the Group’s material sourcing operations. She holds a
Bachelor degree of Science in Computer Science from the University
of British Columbia, Canada. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. HA has
experience in the information technology field. Ms. HA is the daughter of

Mr. HA Chung Fong and is the spouse of Dr. YEN Gordon.
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DIRECTORS'REPORT B E T iR &

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated

financial statements for the year ended 31st August, 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the

consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated

income statement on page 38.

No interim dividend was declared for the year. The directors do not
recommend the payment of a final dividend and propose that the profit

of the Company for the year be retained.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group during
the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Particulars of the Group’s investment properties are set out on page 35.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
During the year, the Group had additions of HK$119,179,000 and

HK$117,376,000 to plant and machinery and construction in progress,

respectively, to expand and upgrade the Group’s manufacturing facilities.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group and of the Company during the year are set out

in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital are set out in note 30 to the consolidated

financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserve available for distribution to shareholders as at
31st August, 2009 represented the retained profits of HK$530,192,000
(2008: HK$529,624,000).
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report were:
Executive directors:

Mr. HA Chung Fong (Chairman)

Mr. HA Kam On, Victor

Mr. LAU Hong Yon

Dr. YEN Gordon

Mr. WAI Yick Man (resigned on 8th June, 2009)

Non-executive directors:

Mr. HA Hon Kuen
Mrs. FUNG YEH Yi Hao, Yvette

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. NG Kwok Tung
Mr. WONG Kwong Chi
Mr. CHOW Wing Kin, Anthony, SBS, JP

Pursuant to Article 102 of the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. HA
Chung Fong, Mr. HA Kam On, Victor and Mr. NG Kwok Tung shall retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting ("AGM"). All retiring

directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year

without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS'REPORT B E T iR &

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING EEvRONREERDER
SHARES

At 31st August, 2009, the interests of the directors of the Company and MNZEBEZEARENB=1+—H REXQTRE
their associates in the shares and underlying shares of the Company SR EEHRAIESGREZBMARESIZ L
and its associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained MRARALET AN ESETESRG 2ZEST
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Al ([BESA]) BEANARTREBRA2ER
Ordinance (“SFO”), or as otherwise notified to the Company and The AABBEEREBBAREAQATIREHZE QA
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant BB 2RO REEROEROT ¢

to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the "Model Code”) contained in the Rules Governing the Listing

of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company: REAQATRODREEARGNFRER
Number of issued ordinary shares held as Approximate
HERTEBEREE % of the issued

share capital of

the Company

Beneficial Other SR RN
Name of director owner interests Total 21T
BEEROEE BEREBA Ht s FCEC IR A b 2
Mr. HA Chung Fong 49,344,000 280,082,044 329,426,044 41.49
BRI EE (note)

(Kiat)

Mr. HA Kam On, Victor 798,000 — 798,000 0.10
BERREE
Mr. LAU Hong Yon 280,000 — 280,000 0.04
WMEEEE
Mrs. FUNG YEH Yi Hao, Yvette 70,000 — 70,000 0.01
BERIELZLT
Note: Mzt -
Mr. HA Chung Fong was deemed to be interested in 280,082,044 shares in the HRENMFTEERERKASR L —BHERET
Company by virtue of the set up of a discretionary trust, the Ha Trust, for the the Ha Trust » & Ith 3 & 1F # 55280,082,044% &K 1A 7]
benefit of his family and Trustcorp Limited (*Trustcorp”) is the trustee of the Ha B% 13 #E %5 ° Trustcorp Limited ([ Trustcorp J) Hthe Ha
Trust. Trustcorp is the wholly-owned subsidiary of Newcorp Holdings Limited TrustZ & 5E A ° Trustcorp&Newcorp Holdings Limited

("Newcorp”). (TNewcorp ) 22 E M BT ©
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Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors of the Company nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares and underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations, which were recorded in the
register as required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

Code.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note 31

to the consolidated financial statements.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate
and none of the directors nor any of their spouses or children under the
age of 18 had any rights to subscribe for the shares of the Company, or

had exercised any such rights during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF

SIGNIFICANCE
Other than as disclosed under the heading "CONNECTED

TRANSACTIONS”, no contracts of significance, to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted

at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
On 27th April, 2009, Folktune Limited (“Folktune”), a wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Company entered into an agreement with certain
minority shareholders of Dongguan Fuan Textiles Limited ("Dongguan
Fuan”) (the “Transferors”), a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
to acquire from the Transferors in aggregate 39% of the equity interests
in Dongguan Fuan at a total consideration of HK$77,326,205 (the “Share

Transfer Agreement”).
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On the same day, Folktune issued an undertaking to China Resources
Textiles Company Limited (*China Resources Textiles”), also a minority
shareholder of Dongguan Fuan, pursuant to which Folktune undertakes
after one year from the date of the undertaking to (i) pay to China
Resources Textiles HK$7,616,000 as compensation under the undertaking
and operation agreement dated 3rd July, 2001 entered into between
Folktune, the Transferors and China Resources Textiles (the “Fuan
Agreement”) and (ii) to acquire 10% equity interests in Dongguan Fuan
from China Resources Textiles for a cash consideration of HK$12,211,232

(the "Undertaking”).

Folktune, the Transferors and China Resources Textiles had also on
27th April, 2009 entered into a cancellation agreement pursuant to
which the parties agreed that the Fuan Agreement shall be cancelled
with effect from March 2008 and the operation fees payable to the
Transferors and China Resources Textiles since March 2008 pursuant to
the Fuan Agreement shall be set off by the consideration payable by
Folktune to them for purchase of equity interests in Dongguan Fuan.
Upon completion of the Share Transfer Agreement, Dongguan Fuan will
become a 90% owned subsidiary of the Company, and upon completion
of the matters as stated in the Undertaking issued to China Resources
Textiles, Dongguan Fuan will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Company.

Details of the above transactions, which constitute major and connected
transactions of the Company, are set out in the circular of the Company
dated 30th July, 2009 and note 26 to the consolidated financial

statements.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
At 31st August, 2009, the register of substantial shareholders maintained

by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows that other
than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain directors, the
following shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests in

the issued share capital of the Company.

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company:

FERRREMRRES

RZZBEAFNBE=Z+—-B REAFAQFE
HERBERDIEBMARENETERREM
Br BREABNESSHREZERIN UT
RERECBARADEEELRDFACHTREDN

BRAfE -

RADBRDRBBERGOFRER

Approximate %

of the issued

share capital

Name of substantial shareholder Number of shares  Capacity KB RIT
FTERRER ROBE S5 IR b 2
Ms. TANG Kuen Mui 329,426,044  Spouse interest 41.49
BRIk £ (notes 1and 3) BB
(Krati1k3)
Newcorp 280,082,044 Interest of corporation controlled 35.27
(notes 2and 3)  FREHIKEE R R
(BtaE2X3)
Templeton Investment Counsel, LLC 46,724,566  Investment manager 5.88
RERKE
Brandes Investment Partners, L.P. 86,034,332  Investment manager 10.84
REKE
The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation 47,428,000 Interest of corporation controlled 5.97
(note4) FRiZHIKEE MR
(Kiat4)
Franklin Templeton Investments Corp. 63,439,989  Investment manager 7.99

REKE
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Notes:

1. Ms. TANG Kuen Mui, spouse of Mr. HA Chung Fong, was deemed to be

interested in the shares.

2. Newcorp is the ultimate controlling shareholder of Trustcorp and Trustcorp is
the trustee of the Ha Trust, a discretionary trust set up by Mr. HA Chung Fong

for the benefit of his family.

3. The interests of Mr. HA Chung Fong, Ms. TANG Kuen Mui and Newcorp were
duplicated.

4. The 47,428,000 shares included a lending pool of 33,428,000 shares.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of
any other relevant interests or short position in the issued share capital

of the Company as at 31st August, 2009.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest customers

was less than 30.0% of the total revenue for the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier
and five largest suppliers taken together accounted for 12.2% and 32.2%

respectively.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director or a
shareholder of the Company have an interest in any of the Group’s five

largest suppliers or customers.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations

totalling HK$179,000.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

From information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors of the Company, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year ended

31st August, 2009.
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POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

Details of a significant event occurring after the balance sheet date are

set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming AGM to re-appoint
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.
On behalf of the Board

HA Chung Fong

Director

Hong Kong,
14th December, 2009
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FEHEE(EE)FRELT —zsisseg

PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES X EVIXHTH

Particulars of investment properties held by the Group at 31st August, 2009 are as follows:

REZZBZANFNA=ZT—B AEEREVMENFBOT -

The Group’s

Location Lease terms Use effective interest
rEE

b Bh HEFH AR BRERE
Factory 1C, 2A&B, 4C&D, Medium-term lease Warehouse and workshop 100%

6A-D, 7B-D, 8A-D, 9A-D, 10B-D, hHEE ERRIE
12A&C and portion of roof,

car parking spaces, 15, 18, 20, 21, 23,
24,25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31 & 32,

lorry parking spaces 3,4, 6,7 & 17

of Block No. 9 Tin's Centre

3B Hung Cheung Road

Section A of TM.T.L. 74

Tuen Mun, New Territories

Hong Kong

BEREPIHER74TAR

IR 3BIR K 0 B9

THCE » 2#2ARBE - 42CRDE »
6IEAZDE  7#BEDE - 8AZEDE »
IEAZEDE - 10BEDE * 2BARCER
IR E - AREHEL15,18, 20, 21, 23,
24, 25,26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31 % 325%
MEBHEA3, 4,6, 7R 175
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT  ¥% 3T #% B B 3R <&

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF FOUNTAIN SET (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
EHEZX (5E) BRAR
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fountain Set
(Holdings) Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 38 to 132, which comprise
the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31st August, 2009,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to
the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

BEHEX (RE)BERATA2ERRE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT  ¥% 3T #% B Bl 3R &

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st
August, 2009 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
14th December, 2009
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT &5 & W %= BR

For the year ended 31st August, 2009
BEZE—EENFNA=F—HILFE

2009 2008
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
bt &t FExT FHET
Revenue = 3 5 5,451,492 6,103,045
Cost of sales SHERA (4,607,480) (5,169,704)
Gross profit EF 844,012 933,341
Other income HAob A 64,794 83,190
Gain on disposal of assets classified HESHEARFELHERZ
as held for sale EEMBNE 6 104,657 -
Net of reversal of impairment losses and HEBESBARBELEERZ
additional depreciation provided on EEZYFE KER
transfer of assets classified as held for R 2 REERREE
sale to property, plant and equipment HERITEZFE 6 11,094 -
Reversal of impairment loss on amounts H 34 HI A T K R IE
due from jointly controlled entities Z R BB KR E 7 - 21,907
Distribution and selling expenses DEREEER (304,482) (359,929)
Administrative expenses THEA (585,072) (701,367)
Other expenses Hih& A (75,959) (35,731)
Finance costs A& A 8 (48,308) (83,780)
Impairment losses on property, plant M HERTEZ
and equipment SRIEEEPN 6,15 (2,456) (150,449)
Employee termination benefits RIEEZEBAEZE 6,28 - (54,270)
Relocation cost of plant and equipment R REHEZBBRA 6,28 - (2,130)
Profit (loss) before taxation BRBAIER (F5E8) 8,280 (349,218)
Income tax expense FrigBiZ 9 (12,475) (9,179)
Loss for the year =FERE 10 (4,195) (358,397)
Attributable to: AL
Equity holders of the Company ARATEEFEA (48,928) (396,451)
Minority interests VYRR E S 44,733 38,054
(4,195) (358,397)
Dividends paid EKRE 12 - 39,700
HK cents/& il HK cents;& il

Basic loss per share BREREE 13 (6.2) (49.9)




FREHEE(EE)FARLE —szissi
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET ZESZEEEBEER

At 31st August, 2009
R-FEZEANFNA=+—H

4,188,232

2009 2008
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
Kt FET FET
Non-current assets FEREEE
Investment properties BREMHE 14 12,755 12,680
Property, plant and equipment VI - B RRE 15 2,283,789 2,152,310
Prepaid lease payments — non-current portion BNEERE
—3ERBIBMH 16 138,512 146,588
Consideration receivable — non-current portion WA E - ERB I 18 168,672 =
Derivative financial instruments PTEERMIA 19 - 7,175
Deferred tax assets EEBIEE E 20 16,111 18,885
2,619,839 2,337,638
Current assets MEEE
Inventories 78 21 1,180,756 1,465,681
Trade, bills and other receivables EE - ZEBERHEAMEIR
IR 22 1,352,190 1,205,659
Prepaid lease payments — current portion FENHEERE-REBBH 16 3,093 3,237
Consideration receivable - current portion BERAE - RE B 18 64,042 -
Derivative financial instruments TTESRMIEA 19 - 15,876
Tax recoverable A W [ #5418 26,267 31,404
Bank deposits with restricted use BERFIAZEZRITER 23 2,127 4,698
Short-term bank deposits BHISR T 23 58,015 394,092
Bank balances and cash RITEERES 23 742,400 286,708
3,428,890 3,407,355
Assets classified as held for sale PEABELHEZEE 6 5,493 255,222
3,434,383 3,662,577
Current liabilities nEaE
Trade and other payables EHERH A EMARIE 24 635,233 657,657
Bills payable EREE 24 254,759 162,703
Amounts due to minority shareholders RDEBRRNIE 25 80,100 76,214
Consideration payable - current portion EARE-RBIHD 26 28,672 =
Deferred income EIER A 27 1,458 1,458
Derivative financial instruments PTESRMTIA 19 - 9,921
Tax payable FEAS B 18 20,572 17,333
Restructuring provisions BHEEE 28 4,689 11,695
Bank borrowings — due within one year RITEE——FAEH 29 839,538 547,763
Bank overdrafts IRITEX 29 969 4,086
1,865,990 1,488,830
Net current assets REBEEEE 1,568,393 2,173,747
Total assets less current liabilities EERAERABARS

4,511,385
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 4%ZFE5EEBER

At 31st August, 2009
R-EENFNA=1+—H

2009 2008
Notes HKS$’000 HKS’000
bt &t FET FET
Non-current liabilities FREBE
Consideration payable - non-current portion EARE-ERB I 26 46,316 -
Deferred income U A 27 69,996 71,454
Derivative financial instruments PTESRMIEA 19 30,898 2,309
Bank borrowings — due after one year RITEE——FR2H 29 1,489,018 1,732,084
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEE G 20 3,247 6,344
1,639,475 1,812,191
Net assets EEFE 2,548,757 2,699,194
Capital and reserves EARRFE
Share capital & A< 30 158,802 158,802
Reserves N 2,235,079 2,289,353
Equity attributable to equity holders KRB EREEABLES
of the Company 2,393,881 2,448,155
Minority interests DB RER 154,876 251,039
Total equity EmBE 2,548,757 2,699,194
The consolidated financial statements on pages 38 to 132 were approved FIBRINENGZESHEBRREN =ZZEELE
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 14th December, T AT NEHEESEBRZERK A
2009 and are signed on its behalf by: THESRREE
HA Chung Fong LAU Hong Yon
ERF ME=
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EFE EFE
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FEEE¥E(EE)FARLSE —szissesx
> ==
BALANCESHEET ZBEEEBER
At 31st August, 2009
R-BEZEAFENA=+—H
2009 2008
Notes HK$’000 HKS’000
e FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB RERE 15 4,598 6,214
Investments in subsidiaries MBARIRE 17 33,856 33,856
Derivative financial instruments fTESmMIT A 19 - 7,175
38,454 47,245
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables H th fE W TR I8 2,076 1,566
Amounts due from subsidiaries M B A B FT K 7K IE 17 3,087,324 2,989,478
Derivative financial instruments TTESRMIEA 19 - 15,876
Tax recoverable ] Y [B] 2 18 314 314
Short-term bank deposits FEHARITIF X 23 - 50,714
Bank balances and cash ROTEEFERES 23 138,398 4,541
3,228,112 3,062,489
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H A fE (S50 1E 14,442 12,117
Amounts due to subsidiaries R KB A B FRIE 17 486,653 350,109
Bank borrowings — due within one year BITEE-——FREH 29 466,163 277,355
967,258 639,581
Net current assets MEEEFE 2,260,854 2,422,908
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERARBARS 2,299,308 2,470,153
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BALANCESHEET BEBMERXR

At 31st August, 2009
R-EENFNA=1+—H

2009 2008
Notes HK$’000 HKS'000
Mt FET FET

Non-current liabilities FREBEME
Derivative financial instruments fTEEMI A 19 30,898 2,309
Bank borrowings — due after one year IRITEE ——FREH 29 1,382,082 1,582,084
1,412,980 1,584,393
Net assets EERE 886,328 885,760

Capital and reserves ERR#E
Share capital &N 30 158,802 158,802
Reserves i 32 727,526 726,958
Total equity BB 886,328 885,760

HA Chung Fong LAU Hong Yon
ENFE )=
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EFE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES INEQUITY #FEHEREFHR K
For the year ended 31st August, 2009
R _EZNFENA=1—HILFE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ARAEREEAER
Capital
Share Share redemption Translation  Statutory  Retained Minority Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserves profits Total interests equity
, %5 SHBR
Rs BB KWERE EXEE OIERf  RREA aE Bs EREE
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FEr FEn FEr FEn FEn FEn FEn TEn FEr
(note)
i)
At 1st September, 2007 RoBBLE
hB-H 158,802 197,124 210 (64,084) 18,000 2,555,608 2,805,660 218,796 3,084,456
Exchange differences arising on EREEEN
translation of foreign operations BANENER
recognised directly in equity EXES - - - 18,646 - - 18,646 11,081 29727
(Loss) profit for the year REE (F8) 27 - - - - - (396451)  (396,451) 38054 (358397)
Total recognised income and REEBZNKA
expense for the year RXLAE - - - 18,646 - (396451)  (377,809) 49135 (328,670)
Dividends paid to equity holders BAREFALT
of the Company BREAA - - - - - (39,7000 (39,700) - (39,700)
Dividends paid to minority ERRETHH
shareholders RE - - - - - - - (16892 (16892)
Transfer il - - - - 19,785 (19,785) - - -
At 315t August, 2008 RZZENE
NB=t-H 158,802 197,124 210 (45,438) 37,785 2099672 2,448,155 251,039 2,699,194
Exchange differences arising on EREEEM
translation of foreign operations BANENER
recognised directly in equity ERES - - - (4,776) - - (4,776) (5635  (10411)
Release upon disposal of a HE-BHEA RN
subsidiary (note 38) Bl (fritss) - - - (570) - - (570) = (570)
(Loss) profit for the year REE (F58)BA - - - - - (48928)  (48928) 44733 (4195)
Total recognised income and REERANBA
expense for the year R tAE - - - (5,346) - (48928) (54,274) 39,098 (15,176)
Acquisition of additional interest WE-EHELT
in a subsidiary (notes 24 and 26) BMER
(Hit24k26) - - - - - - - (942600 (94260)
Dividends paid to minority ERREFAH
shareholders RE - - - - - - - (41,001 (41,001)
At 31st August, 2009 RZZENE
NA=Z+-H 158,802 197,124 210 (50,784) 37,785 2,050,744 2,393,881 154,876 2,548,757

Note:  The statutory reserves represent the appropriation of certain percentages
of profit after taxation of certain subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of
China (the "PRC") as recommended by the directors of those subsidiaries
as reported under the PRC statutory financial statements. According
to the provision of the articles of association of the subsidiaries, the
statutory reserves shall only be used for making up losses, capitalisation
into share capital, expansion of the relevant subsidiary’s operation and for
the welfare of the subsidiary’s staff and workers.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31st August, 2009
BEZE—EENFNA=F—HILFE

GEREREBRR

2009 2008
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt et FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES &EEA
Profit (loss) before taxation BRBAIER (F58) 8,280 (349,218)
Adjustments for: FEE
Amortisation of deferred income EIEW A 2 #8E (1,458) =
Depreciation of investment properties REMEZITE 483 435
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M MBREBHEZITE 204,378 249,340
Finance costs & A 48,308 83,780
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — Rk E A B S
Wz 38 (544) (224)
Gain on disposal of assets classified HESPBEARBELERZ
as held for sale BERESWE (104,657) -
Gain on disposal of jointly controlled entities HEHE =B E
g - (10,865)
Net of reversal of impairment losses and HEIBEABFHEZ
additional depreciation provided on transfer EEZYFE HER
of assets classified as held for sale to property, R 2 REERLEE
plant and equipment HEERITEZFE (11,094) -
Impairment losses on property, plant and VI - EBERZREZRE
equipment Bk 2,456 150,449
Impairment on trade and bills receivables, net EERZEERFIERERE 5,306 32,879
Interest income FE WA (10,397) (12,348)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME HERKRER
equipment and prepaid lease payments FENEEREBEZEE 2,193 2,157
Release of prepaid lease payments FENEEREEH 1,629 1,941
Restructuring provisions BHERE - 56,400
Reversal of impairment loss on amounts due HE =B HBT R RIEZ
from jointly controlled entities RAEE R E - (21,907)
Operating cash flows before movements NBEERBANEERSE
in working capital mE 144,883 182,819
Decrease in inventories FEMWRD 274,981 356,952
(Increase) decrease in trade, bills and other EE - ZERHEMERIIE
receivables #9 (45 0n) i 2> (126,610) 419,076
Net movement in derivative financial instruments T4 £ @ T ENS B FEE 41,719 955
Decrease in trade and other payables EERHAMEAFRIBRR D (30,605) (123,324)
Increase (decrease) in bills payable T EIE ML i O 4) 92,056 (336,827)
Decrease in restructuring provisions BABBRY (7,006) (44,705)
Net cash generated from operations EEMBNREFE 389,418 454,946
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid 25 BREH (135) (71,321)
Overseas taxation (paid) refunded BINFLIE (BEAT) B (4,287) 810
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES EEEAMBNRESFE

384,996

384,435




BEHEE(RE)FRSE] —szisss
=
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT &ZFEIREREREK
For the year ended 31st August, 2009
BE—EENFNA=+—HILFE
2009 2008
Notes HK$’000 HKS’000
HraE FET FET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEAE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWE  HBERZE (274,236) (556,044)
Proceeds from disposal of assets classified HEPEABELEECZEE
as held for sale FriS s 1E 43,122 =
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEYE HBERBHEUR
equipment and prepaid lease payments FENEERERSRIE 6,698 12,324
Interest received 2 RF 2 5,538 12,316
Decrease (increase) in bank deposits with ERFIAZEZRITERN
restricted use A ($Zn) 2,571 (2,213)
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HE—BMRBARMSHKE 38 - 910
Additions of prepaid lease payments TR & FRIB AV IZ N - (78,710)
Government grants received 2 W AT 8 B 27 - 72,912
Repayment from jointly controlled entities HEZEHIHBEZNRIE - 34,336
Proceeds from disposal of jointly controlled entities £ t [F] 3% %l # 4 AT 15 7K 18 - 10,865
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFEEANRESFE (216,307) (493,304)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mEIEE
New borrowings raised FESENRITEE 2,047,125 1,813,737
Advances from minority shareholders DY IR R 3,886 36,164
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITHEE (1,995,222) (1,717,320)
Interest paid 2FFE (56,054) (87,611)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders ENBREFLERR (41,001) (16,892)
Dividends paid to equity holders of the Company EffRREFAR D AR
EST=PN - (39,700)
Repayment of obligations under finance leases EEBHEERMRM - (439)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEBEBANRESFE (41,266) (12,061)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH RERZEFREEAN
EQUIVALENTS #mORD) FE 127,423 (120,930)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING REEEBRRENRER
OF THE YEAR ZEELER 676,714 786,239
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES EXSENEE (4,691) 11,405
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END REFELERNRER
OF THE YEAR ZEHRELEAE 799,446 676,714
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND REeRERRLSEBAER
CASH EQUIVALENTS W 2 47
Being: 1F5&
Short-term bank deposits FEHR 1T IF X 58,015 394,092
Bank balances and cash RITEERES 742,400 286,708
Bank overdrafts RITEX (969) (4,086)

799,446

676,714
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &% & A ¥R Rt st

For the year ended 31st August, 2009
BEZE—EENFNA=F—HILFE

1. GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
the principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the

Corporate Information to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar,

which is also the functional currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal

activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 17.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments
and interpretations (“new HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA”), which are or have become

effective.

HK(IFRIC) - INT 9 &
HKAS 39 (Amendments)

Embedded Derivatives

HK(IFRIC) - INT 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HK(IFRIC) - INT 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

HK(IFRIC) - INT 14 HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit
Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements
and their Interaction

HK(IFRIC) - INT 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the
results and financial position for the current or prior accounting
years have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior year

adjustment is required.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st August, 2009
BE—EENFNA=F—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

standards, amendments or interpretations that have been issued but are

not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 (Amendments)
HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1(Amendment)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27

(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 8

HKFRS 9

HK(IFRIC) - INT 15

HK(IFRIC) - INT 16

HK(IFRIC) - INT 17

Improvements to HKFRSs'
Improvements to HKFRSs 20092

Presentation of Financial Statements?

Borrowing Costs®

Related Party Disclosures*

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements®

Classification of Rights Issues®

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations Arising on Liquidation?

Eligible Hedged Items®

Additional Exemptions for First-time
Adopters’

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary,

Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate®

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations?

Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment
Transactions’

Business Combinations*

Improving Disclosures about Financial
Instruments?

Operating Segments®

Financial Instruments®

Agreements for the Construction of Real
Estate?

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign

Operation®

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to

Owners®
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BEZE—EENFNA=F—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009 except
the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for annual periods beginning on or

after 1st July, 2009.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009, 1st July,

2009 or 1st January, 2010, as appropriate.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2009.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2011.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2009.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st February, 2010.
7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2010.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2013.

© Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st October, 2008.

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group’s accounting
for business combination for which the acquisition date is on or after 1st
September, 2009. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting treatment

for changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary.

The Group has commenced considering the potential impact of the other
new and revised standards, amendments or interpretations but is not yet
in a position to determine whether they would have a significant impact

on its results and financial position are prepared and presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st August, 2009
BE—EENFNA=F—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out

below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain

benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date

of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used

by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are

eliminated on consolidation.

FEEEE(EE)FRELS -z issn

HEMBRRMEE

3. FEGHBER

FEMBRR (BBHLWMT AN FEET M
M PEEERAEERH  FARANEEGH
BEBHMT :

RENBRRCREBSTHLSHMANEE
MR REARRE - GEHMBBERERE
BRXAEFLETRYTEHTRUDREBLF
RO ERNERIE

REEE
REMBRREEARARZIADAEH N
BENRBLAR) WHBHRR - HAAAEEE
ERBNMBREERER  EMAEHEBHE
BFE - BEGEHE -

EFERBIHENWBARNEECRER
WERLEERBEH (NER) BREFS KA
BRA o

MEFE WEBARANMBRXRSFLHAR .
FHEARRErAEEABREDRAAERAE
—ﬁ°

FEEEBNRS - &tk WARIHIRER
SIRE RFEE o




FOUNTAIN SET (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  Annual Report 2009

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st August, 2009
BEZE—EENFNA=F—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity therein. Minority interests
in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests at the date of
the original business combination and the minority’s share of changes
in equity since the date of the combination. Losses applicable to the
minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are
allocated against the interests of the Group except to the extent that
the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional

investment to cover the losses.

Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary

On acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary, goodwill was
calculated as the difference between the cost of additional interest
acquired and the increase in the Group’s share of the carrying amount of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. If the increase
in the Group’s share of the carrying amount of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities, after reassessment, exceeds the cost
of the additional interest, the excess is recognised immediately in the

consolidated income statement.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for

capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of investment
properties over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account

of their estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st August, 2009
BE—EENFNA=F—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the consolidated income statement in the year in which

the item is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than construction in progress and freehold land) are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Freehold land is carried at cost less any recognised impairment

loss.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment (other than construction in progress) over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated

residual value, using the straight-line method.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment in
the course of construction for production or for its own use purposes.
Construction in progress is carried at cost less any recognised
impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended

use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the consolidated

income statement in the year in which the item is derecognised.
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For the year ended 31st August, 2009
BEZE—EENFNA=F—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Prepaid lease payments
Prepaid lease payments are carried at cost and released over the lease

term on a straight-line basis.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s balance sheet

at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost

is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the balance
sheet when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or

financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and receivables and
derivative financial instruments. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees on points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period. Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for

debt instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st August, 2009
BE—EENFNA=F—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. At
each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including consideration receivable, trade, bills and other
receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries, bank deposits and balances
and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on

impairment of loans and receivables below).

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at each
balance sheet date. Loans and receivables are impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition, the estimated future cash flows have been

affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments and observable changes in national or

local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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For the year ended 31st August, 2009
BEZE—EENFNA=F—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest

rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to

profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment

not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in

the assets of the group entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st August, 2009
BE—EENFNA=F—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period. Interest

expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities other than derivative financial
instruments (including trade and other payables, bills payable, amounts
due to subsidiaries/minority shareholders, consideration payable,
bank borrowings and bank overdrafts) are subsequently measured at

amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair
value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss immediately. Derivative financial instruments are
classified as non-current assets or liabilities when the remaining maturity
of the instruments is more than one year and current assets or liabilities

when the remaining maturity is less than one year.
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BEZE—EENFNA=F—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the

consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and

the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount
will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the
sale is highly probable and the asset is available for immediate sale in its

present condition.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower

of the assets’ previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income over the periods necessary
to match them with the related costs. Grants related to depreciable
assets are presented as deferred income and are released to income
over the useful lives of the assets. Grants related to expense items are
recognised in the same period as those expenses are charged in the
consolidated income statement and are reported separately as other
income. Government grants shall not be recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the entity will comply with the conditions

attaching to them.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st August, 2009
BE—EENFNA=F—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that the Group will be required
to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the directors’ best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the
balance sheet date, and are discounted to present value where the effect

is material.

A provision for restructuring is recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet on conditions that the Group has a detailed formal plan and has
raised a valid expectation in those affected that the plan will be carried
out, by starting to implement that plan or by announcing its main

features to those affected by it.

For provision in relation to employee termination benefits where the
Group has a detailed formal plan and is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal, the liability and expenses are recognised when the Group
is committed to terminate the employment of an employee or group of
employees before their normal retirement date or provide termination
benefits as a result of an offer made in order to encourage voluntary

redundancy.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of
its assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.
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BEZE—EENFNA=F—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of returns, discounts and

sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered

and title has passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s

net carrying amount.

Retirement benefit schemes

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans/state-
managed retirement benefit schemes/the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are charged as an expense when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the

assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31st August, 2009
BE—EENFNA=F—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.

All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and

recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease
are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a

straight-line basis.

Taxation
Income tax charge represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated income
statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the balance sheet date.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that

the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset

to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred
tax is charged or credited to profit or loss, except when it relates to items
charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is

also dealt with in equity.
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For the year ended 31st August, 2009
BE—EENFNA=F—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items that are measured in

terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in the

consolidated income statement in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Company (i.e. Hong Kong dollar)
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the year, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised as a separate
component of equity (the translation reserve). Such exchange differences
are recognised in the consolidated income statement in the period in

which the foreign operation is disposed of.
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For the year ended 31st August, 2009
BEZE—EENFNA=F—HILFE

4. KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key source of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that
has a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, is as

follows:

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses annually whether property, plant and equipment
have any indication of impairment, in accordance with the relevant
accounting policies. The recoverable amounts of the Group’s property,
plant and equipment have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the use of judgment and
estimates on future operating cash flows and discount rates adopted.
Where the actual cash flows are different from the original estimate, a

material change in the amount of impairment may arise.

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable mainly for
goods sold by the Group, net of returns, discounts and sales related

taxes, to outside customers during the year.

The Group’s primary format for reporting segment information is
geographical segments (based on location of customers). Others mainly

represent Singapore and Macau.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &R & B F3 R R M st

For the year ended 31st August, 2009
BE—EENFNA=F—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. EXERIEEHR (8)
(continued)
2009 —EBAF
The People's
Republic
Hong  of China
Kong  (the“PRC") Taiwan Korea  Srilanka  America Europe Others Eliminations Consolidated
HEAR
LHE

g2 (Al =) | 88 HEET ZH B HfE By Ra
HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOOO  HKSOO0  HKSO0  HKSOMO  HKSO00
tEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEx TEx TEx TEx  TEx  FEx

REVENUE EXE
External sales BARE 1540571 786979 784,682 468206 608,037 280212 68923 913,882 - 5451492
Inter-segment sales (note) TERHE W) 3835043 2,371,953 - - 363368 24,855 - 96,828  (6,692,947) -
Total revenue EXBAE 5,376,514 3,158,932 784,682 468,206 971,405 305,067 68,923 1,010,710 (6,692,947) 5,451,492
RESULTS E4
Seqment results HExE 159583 72917 80,637 47,45 105334 17,280 6879 93474 583,349
Interest income FEBA 10,397
Gain on disposal of assets HEABARELE

classified as held for sale ZEERENE 104,657
Net of reversal of impairment BB S BAEELE

losses and additional LEEENE K&

depreciation provided on REBzAERL

transfer of assets classified BRENRIEZ

as held for sale to property, #E

plant and equipment 11,094
Unallocated income FARBA 4,205
Unallocated expenses KA (657,114)
Finance costs RERA (48,308)
Profit hefore taxation BHaEH 8,280
Income tax expense B (12,475)
Loss for the year REEFE (4,195)
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BEZE—EENFNA=F—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. EXERSEER ()
(continued)
2008 —EENE
Hong
Kong The PRC Taiwan Korea  SriLanka America Europe Others ~ Eliminations Consolidated

EE RE L 88 HFEW+ ZH BN HfHE He Ra
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOO  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSOOO  HKSOOO  HKSO00
fEr  FEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEx TEx TEx  TEx  TEx

5]

REVENUE X8
External sales HHE 1,999,424 541,828 674,045 731,374 788,126 358,625 50,378 959,245 - 6,103,045
Inter-segment sales (note) AEEHE (i) 4853015 277169 - - g5 33,663 - 69,662 (8162,261) -
Total revenue EXBNE 6852439 3313524 674,045 731374 1,222,351 392,288 50378 1028907  (8,162,261) 6,103,045
RESULTS S
Segment results EcE 192,363 41,884 54,943 65,921 138,019 31113 5142 87,589 616,974
Interest income NEBA 12,348
Unallocated income AABHA 2937
Unallocated expenses AR (939,604)
Finance costs HERK (83,780)
Reversal of impairment loss REEHREHIE

on amounts due from ZHBEARE

jointly controlled entities 21,907
Loss hefore taxation KBRS (349,218)
Income tax expense FrEm X (9,179)
Loss for the year REEFE (358397)
Note: Inter-segment sales are charged at prices with reference to the B APEBHEEZERDSRER 2T SERM

prevailing market rates. EEE °

An analysis of the Group's segment assets and liabilities, expenditure HRESRAKSEIHEEREBHNEER
on property, plant and equipment as well as depreciation thereon Wi mSEoENDBTERERESSE  MAE
attributable to geographical markets by location of customer for BEEmEAEETES T EEEREE  WE -
both years is not presented as the directors are of the opinion that it BELEENEXEHRITEULEREFEHER
is impracticable and not meaningful to allocate the amounts of the g TS /EE D AT o

respective assets and liabilities to geographical markets.
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For the year ended 31st August, 2009
BE—EENFNA=F—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. EXERIEEHR (8)
(continued)

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets BAOBEENRMEEYE  HBERRENEE

and expenditure on property, plant and equipment, analysed by the SXRBREEFREMIESOMAT

geographical area in which the assets are located:

Expenditure on

Carrying amount property, plant
of segment assets and equipment
Y3 BEBER
PEEENREE RIEHBE X

2009 2008 2009 2008
HKs$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
The PRC FE 3,872,124 3,882,162 251,717 525,689
Hong Kong B 895,392 1,066,365 1,837 2,585
Taiwan (=0 269,572 214,131 - -
Korea EE 20,887 45,411 - -
America E) 44,720 62,891 20 266
Europe &M 10,909 6,705 - 12
Sri Lanka HEEF 414,188 459,991 25,549 30,402
Others Hthith & 251,339 212,270 322 1,093

5,779,131 5,949,926 279,445 560,047
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For the year ended 31st August, 2009
BEZE—EENFNA=F—HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. EXERSEER ()
(continued)

The following table provides an analysis of the Group'’s revenue, carrying BREBNEXE - P EEENEEEURY

amount of segment assets, and expenditure on property, plant and ¥ MEERRENB I IREREEIRFPDAAT -

equipment, analysed by the business operating divisions.

2009 —RENEF
Carrying Expenditure
amount of on property,
segment plant and
Revenue assets equipment
PEHEE WFE -HER
=30 Y BR E B RIEEHB X
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET

Production and sales of dyed fabrics, HERHERST  BABRY

sewing threads and yarns 4,675,746 5,079,215 261,147
Production and sales of garments BERHEENTK 775,746 484,534 17,730
Unallocated Ko E - 215,382 568
5,451,492 5,779,131 279,445

2008 —BEN\F
Carrying Expenditure
amount of on property,
segment plant and
Revenue assets equipment
DEEE W¥E EHER
=30 HY BR E B RIEHB X
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS’000
FET FET FHET

Production and sales of dyed fabrics, HERHERH  BABRRY

sewing threads and yarns 5,373,062 5,281,521 476,690
Production and sales of garments HERBEERK 729,983 509,845 81,816
Unallocated E - 158,560 1,541

6,103,045 5,949,926 560,047
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HEMB|RMEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. BEBERSBEEHR (#)
(continued)
OTHER INFORMATION Hih g
HongKong  ThePRC Taiwan Korea  Srilanka  America Europe Others Consolidated
B T =)} BH HEET EN BN Et%E &4
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
TET TET TET &7 TET TE7 TET TE7 TE7
2009 “EENE
Impairment (reversal of EPES e
impairment) on trade BB (RERE) FE
and bills receivables, net 3,194 5,579 2,534 - 135 135 (29) (6,242) 5,306
2008 —EENE
Impairment on trade and EXRFERNE
bills receivables, net HEFE 8918 1,298 - - 38 11,726 18 10,881 32,879
6. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 6. THEARBEFHEZEE

During the year ended 31st August, 2008, due to significant costs of
replacement and continuous maintenance on existing facilities and
infrastructure including electricity generators and effluent treatment
facilities, which were outmoded and aged, of Dongguan Fuan Textiles
Limited ("Dongguan Fuan”), a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, management decided to close down Dongguan Fuan which
was engaged in the manufacture of dyed fabrics and yarns. As at 31st
August, 2009, the assets with an aggregate amount of HK$5,493,000
(2008: HK$255,222,000), which are expected to be sold within one
year of the balance sheet date, have been classified as assets held for
sale and are presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet.
On 27th April, 2009, the Group entered into an agreement with an
independent third party to sell a substantial portion of those assets
held for sale, details of which are set out in note 18. In addition, the
Group also disposed of certain other assets classified as held for sale to
independent third parties during the year, resulting in an aggregate gain

of HK$104,657,000.

REBZ-ZZENFNA=+-BLFE HR
RERZOBDRERQIA(REZR/RZ] &%
BzHk2EMBLAR) cRERBRERREE

FHRENRSKEERBHCEBRERE/L  MH
REBRFEMEB CRAER  HEEER

ERRERRER ZLORETERBHEESH
ke R-ZEAFNA=+-—HBHZZEEE
#{85,493,00078 T (==& J\ F : 255,222,000/
) FHEREERE-—FRALE E0ER
BIFHEZEE IRGREEEBRBYE
eR—ZZEBENFHNA=-+LH KEHHE—
ERYE=FFILHE  UHERBHZER
EHEEE  FHEENMEE18 I FR - A
SETHEETHOEABFHEZHMEET

BIAE=7F » HRINEHE{E104,657,00058 TT ©
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6. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(continued)

At the balance sheet date, the assets of Dongguan Fuan classified as held

for sale comprise:

HEMBHRRME

6. THERFIFLEZEE (8D
REHD REBRZABRAVFHEZEE

2009 2008

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Property, plant and equipment M - B REE 5,493 253,878
Prepaid lease payments FEHHEERE - 1,344
5,493 255,222

As at 31st August, 2009, the closure of Dongguan Fuan was still in
progress. Management has determined that the fair value less costs
to sell of the relevant cash-generating unit which comprises mainly
property, plant and equipment of Dongguan Fuan was less than its
carrying amount. Accordingly, an impairment loss of HK$2,456,000 (2008:
HK$150,449,000) on property, plant and equipment (note 15) has been
recognised in the current year before transferring to assets classified
held for sale. The estimated fair value less costs to sell is determined
by reference to the latest quotations from independent third parties or

recent market prices for similar assets at each balance sheet date.

Under this closure plan, management of the Group decided to terminate
employments of a significant number of employees of Dongguan
Fuan. Accordingly, a provision for employee termination benefits in the
aggregate amount of HK$54,270,000 was recognised by the Group in the
year ended 31st August, 2008.

R-ZBZAFENB=+—H REEZBEHA
EMEETH EEECHREEHBRSEELE
UFEBREITERARER/LZMEF - BERRE
ZAFEERHEENATDEAELRASE &
I TERESPEABFELHEZEER &R
A - HEBR RRE 2B E8 %K2,456,000
BT (ZZFZ/\F 1 150,449,000 t) (M &F
15) - St AL EEHEERANDRE#FERS
EZRUE=EROIBEIRDEEEZESRT

HEUHIEEMTET AEEEEBRELRLE
ARERERBZZEE Kt XREEERE
Z-ZZT)\FENAZT—HLEFERRAEH
54,270,0008 T 2 X ILEERFZH
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6. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(continued)

In addition, under the closure plan, certain plant and equipment of
Dongguan Fuan were identified for relocation to other factories of the
Group. Accordingly, a restructuring cost in relation to relocation of plant
and equipment of Dongguan Fuan amounting to HK$2,130,000 was also

recognised by the Group in the year ended 31st August, 2008.

Details of the movements in these restructuring provisions of the Group

are disclosed in note 28.

During the current year, management relocated certain plant and
equipment with a carrying amount of HK$86,435,000 to other factories
of the Group. Upon the transfer, the Group reversed an impairment loss
of HK$23,446,000 previously recognised and provided an additional
depreciation of HK$12,352,000 as if such plant and equipment had not
been classified as held for sale to adjust those plant and equipment to
be lower than their recoverable amounts determined by value in use

calculation.
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6. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 6. PEAREHEZEE (&)
(continued)

The closure costs and disposal gain in relation to the closure plan of AREBMREELZEMTEER 2B AR

Dongguan Fuan recognised by the Group and their impact on the Group HEWZUREHAEB 2FZNMT :

are as follows:

2009 2008
HK$’000 HKS’000
FETT FET
Loss of the Group for the year before closure EER=RLEME 2R
costs and disposal gain in relation to the RAREERRAIZRFE
closure plan of Dongguan Fuan rEBEE (109,789) (138,159)
Impairment losses on property, plant and M BB REBEZREERX
equipment (2,456) (150,449)
Other closure costs of Dongguan Fuan (net of tax), =REZEMBEAKA (BRFE)
including employee termination benefits, BREALEEZRALE - #aE
relocation cost of plant and equipment and RBREZBERAREERIEEE
reversal of deferred tax assets Z B E - (69,789)
Gain on disposal of assets classified HESBABELHEZEE
as held for sale (net of tax) sl s (BRBE) 96,956 -
Net of reversal of impairment losses and EEREIBABELEZEER
additional depreciation provided on transfer M MBREHEZREBEERL
of assets classified as held for sale to property, BOETIRITE 2 FE
plant and equipment 11,094 -

Loss of the Group for the year EEEAKEEE (4,195) (358,397)
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7. REVERSAL OF IMPAIRMENT LOSS ON AMOUNTS

DUE FROM JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
During the year ended 31st August, 2008, the Group disposed of its

entire interest in the issued share capital of the jointly controlled entities,
Simking Development Limited and Hoopeston Limited, to certain
independent third parties. Before the disposals, amounts due from jointly
controlled entities previously impaired were fully repaid. Accordingly,
the accumulated impairment loss on the amounts due from jointly
controlled entities of HK$21,907,000 made in prior years, in relation to
Simking Development Limited and Hoopeston Limited was reversed and

recognised as income during that year.

FEEEE(EE)FRELE —zsissg

HEMBRRMEE

7. HEZFEBRARXREBEZRER
KL

BE-ZZTN\FNB=+-BLEEHH
AEBEEERHAGFEFEE  RIBRREBR
A A FHoopeston LimitedE % 17 ik 48 2 & Zp 4
BRTEEBIYUE=F -REER  EAI2RHE
ZEBHAEZEHSERED 2 HEE - Bt
NBEFERBRIFZERER A A RHoopeston
Limited 3% 5] £22 il # 48 Pt X FR 18 2 RETREE X
£ %521,907,0008 TRECEE » WRZFERR
RHUWA o

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BEMXK
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Finance costs on: REE R
Bank borrowings wholly repayable ARIEFRAERIEEZRITEE
within five years 52,962 87,779
Finance leases wholly repayable within five years ZERAFRAEZIMEE2MERE - 4
Imputed interest expense on consideration BERAREZEENEMX
payable (note 26) (Htit26) 555 -
Total finance costs mlE AR 53,517 87,783
Less: amounts capitalised W bEEESEE (5,209) (4,003)
48,308 83,780

Finance costs capitalised during the year arose on the general borrowing
pool and have been calculated by applying a capitalisation rate of 2.2%

(2008: 3.70%) per annum on expenditure of qualifying assets.

AEEBFEECZCRERAIH—REEEEB
EBEE WHFBERI2%(ZEENFE : 3.70%) 5
HE BERGEIREEAN-

’3-1
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BEZE—EENFNA=F—HILFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

9. FiEH<H

2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current tax: EFEEBIE :
Hong Kong B - 1,647
The PRC e 10,378 202
Other jurisdictions Hih 7] A& 189 -
10,567 1,849
Under(over)provision in prior years: BAEFERETR (BERSE)
Hong Kong BB - (208)
The PRC HE 2,094 (5,912)
Other jurisdictions Hib B i E 137 (238)
2,231 (6,358)
Deferred tax (note 20): IR IR (Mat20) :
Hong Kong =B (41) (1,410)
The PRC A 1,395 17,442
Other jurisdictions Hibh 5%kt = (1,677) (2,344)
(323) 13,688
Taxation attributable to the Group AEEELBIIE 12,475 9,179

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable

profit for the year.

ERFNEGHNEREFE G ERBER L
16.5%5T & ©
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BE—EENFNA=F—HILFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, certain of the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries are entitled to exemption from the PRC
enterprise income tax for two calendar years commencing from their first
profit-making year of operation and thereafter, they are entitled to 50%
relief from the PRC enterprise income tax for the following three calendar
years (the "Tax Holiday”). The reduced tax rate for the relief period is

12.5%. The Tax Holiday will expire by 31st December, 2012.

The Enterprise Income Tax Law (*Tax Law”) of the PRC promulgated in
2007 is effective on 1st January, 2008. In February, 2008, the Ministry
of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation issued several
important tax circulars which clarify the implementation of the Tax
Law and have an impact on the Company’s PRC subsidiaries. The PRC
enterprise income tax rates for the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are
unified at 25% effective from 1st January, 2008, while certain of the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries will continue to enjoy the reduced tax rate

of 12.5% until 31st December, 2012 under the Tax Holiday.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in Sri Lanka, the profit
generated from a subsidiary of the Company is entitled to exemption
from the Sri Lanka income tax until 31st August, 2015. Accordingly, no

provision for the income tax was made on the profit for the current year.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing

in the respective jurisdictions.

FEEEE(EE)FRELE —zsissg

HEMB|RMEE

9. FIEH X (&)
RIEFEBEEERER  NARETHREN
BARAREEESENFTFELMEERENR
ERRHAPECEMERERAEEZ=ZBESF
R R50%M FEEEMEH (RBH]) - %
BEANCHARBTEER125%  RRBBR =2
——F&+-A=t+—HEm-°

FER-ZETLERHHEEMSHE (BE]D)
BE-ZZENF—HA—BEBER -R-ZZENEF
—H BB RERBEEAREGETEER
BHUUARBERENERSEE A0 R ZFEKHE
DNEZENEE - RDTFEME ARG —1%25%
BMPECEMER TBE-_ZTTNF—H—
AREY MAQRSEETHEME QK
BERBEEHAZEALCARBR125% BE=
T——_F+-H=+—-HBAL-

REFERFEBAZEZERER BAAT—
BHBARMEEBA I ER S B+ AT
B BHE-Z-—HFNA=t+—HBAL &
o AEEWRHBRFERAELTERBRE -

RN EZHARUERE S A B
B2 BN E -
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
In February, 2008, the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (“IRD")

initiated a tax audit on the Company and its subsidiaries for the years
of assessment from 2001/02 onwards and has commenced to obtain
information and documents from the Group. In March, 2008 and
2009, notices of estimated additional assessment (the "Protective
Assessments”) for the year of assessment 2001/02 and 2002/03 in an
aggregate amount of HK$14,352,000 and HKS$19,844,000, respectively
were issued to the Company and certain subsidiaries of the Company by
the IRD. Objections against the Protective Assessments were lodged and
both amounts were held over unconditionally. The scope and outcome
of the tax audit cannot be readily ascertained at this stage. The directors
of the Company believe that no significant amount of additional profits
tax will be payable under the Protective Assessments and no provision

for additional Hong Kong profits tax is therefore necessary.

Details of the deferred tax are set out in note 20.

HEUBRRME

9. FIEBXH (&)

REZZENFZA BEEHRBER (HBEFD
ARAARENBARA-ZTE— ET-KH
BeRRFEET—ENBEE LEMHKD
AEEBEERNRXGE RZZBEZNF=ZAR
—EENF=R BBRR-_TZT— ET=
R-BE_ /ZE=ZRHBEFEIRBFLHEH
14,352,0007% 7T §.19,844,0005% JT & %8 = & 5T @
B RA ((REMEFHR]) FARBRAA T
ETHBELAR -REBEBREEIFHERE RS
REHSHECERUGEZEM HEBERBEEZ
HERERNABRRERERE AQARES
HERLEREEIHEESZHNANEH £
BAIREKR  REFFEE@MBBREH 2BHE o

BRIEERE 2 S B E NI E20
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BE—EENFNA=F—HILFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

9. FIEHH (4

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit (loss) before EFEMNHREXHERFBAIER (FB) YR
taxation as follows: M
2009 2008
HK$’000 HKS’000
FET FET
Profit (loss) before taxation BB EF (E5E) 8,280 (349,218)

Tax at domestic rates applicable to profits
or losses in the jurisdiction concerned
Tax effect of expenses not deductible

for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose

Under(over)provision in prior years

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Tax effect of other deferred tax
not recognised

Income tax at concessionary rate

Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised

Utilisation of other deferred tax previously
not recognised

Decrease in opening deferred tax liabilities
resulting from a change of tax rate

(Reversal) charge of deferred tax provided
on withholding tax on PRC and overseas
subsidiaries

Others

Tax charge for the year

BRI EZBRERZ
iR E R HIE (4,077) (99,805)
ERTEARNRBEE

3,930 39,590
WA BERRNH G E (6,185) (2,904)
BEFERERE GBERE) 2,231 (6,358)
MIEBERHEINH KL 32,455 64,634
H A B ST B 18 R R R
HBTE 4,006 18,803
REBBETENTER (4,662) (575)
ERBERERIANKIEEE
(775) (2,714)
ERABEARERIANE RS E
(13,142) (2,516)
MESB S| BRDELEREBEEERD
- (143)
o % 8 MR B A R TR IR
EAERITE (B E) MR
(1,315) 1,024
HA 9 143
=FEBBEXH 12,475 9,179
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10. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

10. EEEEE

HEMBHRRME

2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging: RFEBEC BT :
Auditors’ remuneration % B 2 5 B 4,632 5,489
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BRABRAZEFEERAE 4,607,480 5,169,704
Depreciation of investment properties REMEZITE 483 435
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M BBREEZITE 204,378 249,340
Employee benefits expense (excluding employee  EERAZH (FEEFELILESN
termination benefits but including directors’ BRAZE  BEEFERIIAHEED
emoluments set out in note 11) AZEZM2) 714,581 778,457
Impairment on trade and bills receivables, net EERZEERIERERE 5,306 32,879
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME HERRBERER
equipment and prepaid lease payments HEREZEE 2,193 2,157
Net exchange losses [ e HIFE 24,998 32,619
Net loss from changes in fair value of outstanding AR TEERM T A2 A FEE
derivative financial instruments EBEMEEZEERFE 41,719 955
Net loss realised from changes in fair value of FTESMIAN AT EEEE
derivative financial instruments FEEXZ2BEEEFE 7,049 =
Release of prepaid lease payments included in BREEUTEEARANENHEREE Y
— cost of sales —SHERA 1,059 1,339
- administrative expenses —1THEHA 570 602
and after crediting: REstA:
Amortisation of deferred income IR FIE U R 88 1,458 =
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—REKMBARMERE 544 224
Gain on disposal of jointly controlled entities HEHXEZEFHERRS S - 10,865
Imputed interest income on consideration ERREZEEF WA
receivable (note 18) (H1aE18) 4,869 =
Net gain realised from changes in fair value of TESRMIAZ AV EEES
derivative financial instruments FrEEZ 2R WEFE - 11,848
Interest income F B YA 5,528 12,348
Net rental income from investment properties REWMENHAS WA FE 4,655 3,648
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11. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND N.E=kEEHER
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM£
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ten directors were as ENREMGE NI —VESHMEWT :
follows:
2009 —BEAE
Ha Ha Fung Yeh Ng  Wong Chow
Chung Lau Kam On, Yen Wai Ha  YiHao, Kwok  Kwong Wing Kin,

Fong HongYon  Victor Gordon YickMan HonKuen  Yvette Tung Chi  Anthony Total
BNy MBEE ESZ BRE HER FEE BEEM MER I8 BEKR A6
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
TEr TEr TEr TFEx TFEr TEx TErn TEr TFEr FEr  TEx

Fees ne - - - - - 150 150 250 200 200 950
Other emoluments 2t e
Salaries and other benefits ~ FH&REAMER 13,398 3,150 2,545 2,046 2,337 387 - - - - 23,863
Retirement benefits RIKEFGE
scheme contributions B3 - m 191 141 128 - - - - - 631

13,398 3,321 2,736 2,187 2,465 537 150 250 200 200 25,444

2008 —EBENF
Ha Ha Fung Yeh Ng  Wong Chow
Chung Lau Kam On, Yen Wai Ha  YiHao, Kwok  Kwong Wing Kin,
Fong HongYon  Victor Gordon YickMan HonKuen  Yvette Tung Chi  Anthony Total

ERy  HEE E8Z RRE GHER EXE RREG GAR IHZ AXE A€
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TEr TEx TEx TEx TEx TExn TEx TEr TEx TEx TEx

Fees He - - - - - 150 150 250 200 200 950
Other emoluments Hitd &
Salaries and other benefits  FHE&REMBR 14277 3178 2726 2180 2466 462 - - = - 25289
Retirement benefits RINEAGTE
scheme contributions e - 183 205 151 17 - - - - - 710

14,277 3,361 2,931 2,331 2,637 612 150 250 200 200 26949

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any director RAFEE AEBTERIAEENEE -
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation LUE & hn BB Zx & B =R A A0 A 7K £ [F] R /Y 28 B =X

for loss of office. No directors waived any emoluments in the year. BREE ~FEMBEEENETMAENE -
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11. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND
EMPLOYEES’' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments
The five highest paid employees included three (2008: four) directors,
details of whose emoluments are set out in note (a) above. Emoluments

of the remaining two (2008: one) employees are as follows:

M. EEREEHESER (F)

b) EEME
EeMENTEEREEE=A(ZZEZENF O
) ES EMESFHFERN LM E@ BT
U(ZZBNF: —U)EENMESWT :

2009 2008

HKS’000 HKS'000

FET FET

Salaries and other benefits HeREMBR 4,625 2,467
Retirement benefits scheme contributions EREFIFTEE R 318 171
4,943 2,638

Emoluments of each of the above highest paid employees were within
the band HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 (2008: HK$2,500,001 to
HK$3,000,000).

12. DIVIDENDS PAID

s E S <M IES BN £ 152,000,001
JT 22,500,000/ 7t (ZZEZ /\ F : 2,500,001 JT
3,000,000/ 7t) #E 2 A ©

12. BT RE

2009 2008

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET
Final, paid for the year ended 31st August, 2007 ENRE: BHE_ZZLF

— HK4 cents per share NB=+—HBIEEESR4BA - 31,760
Interim, paid for the year ended 31st August, 2008 B fHFH : BE-FZEN\EF

- HK1 cent per share NB=+—HIEFESRIEWL - 7,940

- 39,700

No interim dividend was declared for the year ended 31st August, 2009, BE_EEhNhENBA=T—RHILEE #i&£#E

nor has any final dividend been proposed after the balance sheet date.

kB PFHRE > MRAEE BRI ERFIRE
EMRHRE
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13. BASIC LOSS PER SHARE 13. BREXER
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the equity AKAREEEEAEBLEEREREEIRIER
holders of the Company is based on the loss for the year attributable to NERERFE AEML R F E K 1548,928,000%8
equity holders of the Company of HK$48,928,000 (2008: HK$396,451,000) TT(ZZZT)\F :396,451,00087T) RIZEFE
and on 794,010,960 (2008: 794,010,960) ordinary shares in issue during RE T2 EERR794,0109608% (ZZZF )\ F :
the year. 794,010,960) 5t & ©
Diluted loss per share is not presented as there were no potential HRARMEFEENSIEEBE2TER Rt
ordinary shares outstanding for both years. B2 EBREBEERE -
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REWH
HK$'000
FET
CosT A
At 1st September, 2007 R=ZEZELtFNA—H 12,250
Reclassification from buildings BEFAA 1,481
At 31st August, 2008 RZZEENFNA=+—H 13,731
Reclassification from buildings HEZFREA 1,638
Reclassification to buildings REEETF (1,193)
At 31st August, 2009 R-ZEZERENA=+—H 14,176
DEPRECIATION e
At 1st September, 2007 R=ZFEZELtFENA—H 616
Provided for the year EEERE 435
At 31st August, 2008 RZZEZNFENA=+—H 1,051
Provided for the year EEERE 483
Eliminated on reclassification to buildings T E R TR (113)
At 31st August, 2009 R-ZEZERENA=+—H 1,421
CARRYING VALUES IREIE

At 31st August, 2009 R=BFERARFENA=+—H 12,755

At 31st August, 2008 RZZEZENFNA=+—H 12,680
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31st August,
2009 was HK$43,170,000 (2008: HK$39,440,000). The fair value has
been arrived at based on a valuation carried out by Centaline Surveyors
Limited, a firm of independent property valuers. The valuation was
determined using direct comparison approach with reference to

comparable transaction available in the relevant market.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis

over the shorter of the lease term or 50 years.

All of the investment properties of the Group are situated in Hong Kong
and are held under medium-term leases to earn rentals and/or for capital

appreciation.

14. RE Y% (&)
AEBRENER-_ZTZTAENA=+T—H
K A B8 543,170,000 T (=B Z )\ F :
39,440,000 7T) o W AFEEDR —BILNY
ERETHRASMTERDARGEREESE
THEmMES LEGEDUNEELBELS
ZHETSELAHEBRZXZMEE -

LR EMEUE R EZAEF HHS0F (MR
BERENE -

FEENRERENMEDMLREBIL L HHA
ERARERIEES R RNEREE -
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 9% - B RRE
THE GROUP £
Furniture,
Freehold fixtures and Plant and Motor Construction
land Buildings  equipment  machinery vehicles  in progress Total
XAKE G %E
L BT SET I 1 BEF  ERIR fE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE7 FEx FEx FEx FEx FEx FET
CosT A&
At 1st September, 2007 RZZ2LENA-H 1,966 797,269 681,153 2,748,148 40,414 17,714 4,386,664
Currency realignment MERE T 93 5,008 2,263 10,637 879 2,087 20,967
Additions B - 12,507 45,393 176,422 3,146 318,576 556,044
Interest capitalised FEEEE - - - - - 4,003 4,003
Reclassifications: A
— to investment properties -2RENE - (2,642) - - - - (2,642)
- others —Hfty - 95,854 45,475 85 - (141,414) -
Transfer to assets classified as ~ ERZ N AR
held for sale HEVEE = (261,629) (119,884) (605,826) (7,792) - (995,131)
Disposals iy = = (5,981) (134913) (2,182) - (143,076)
At 31st August, 2008 RZZENE
NE=1+-H 2,059 646,367 648,419 2,194,553 34,465 300,966 3,826,829
Currency realignment IEREER (138) (4,353) (2,016) (11,601) (717) (572) (19,397)
Additions 0 = = 41,928 119,179 962 112,167 274,236
Interest capitalised FEEEE - - - - - 5,209 5,209
Reclassifications: Fit
- from investment properties  — EHREYE - 1,080 - - - - 1,080
- to investment properties -2RENE - (2,734) = - - - (2,734)
- others -Hit - 57,006 62,583 8,380 - (127,969) -
Transfer to assets classified as ~ ERZHBARE
held for sale HEZEE = = = (24,951) - - (24,951)
Transfer from assets classified ~ E B P EARE
as held for sale mEZEE - - 2,49 94,986 294 - 97,529
Disposals & = (8,070) (20,318) (92,337) (2,388) - (123,113)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-ENBEAR
(note 38) (Hiz£38) - - (555) - - - (555)
At 31st August, 2009 R-ZZEZAENA=T—H 1,921 689,296 732,290 2,288,209 32,616 289,801 4,034,133
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 15. Y%~ HBERRE (&)
Furniture,
Freehold fixtures and Plant and Motor Construction
land Buildings  equipment  machinery vehicles  in progress Total
KAKE B KB
Lt BT k#fE  BEHRS EH 2 ERIE AE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

TET TET TET TET TET TET FET

DEPRECIATION AND FERAE

IMPAIRMENT
At 1st September, 2007 R=ZEtENnA-AH - 251,309 370,297 1,491,021 26,731 = 2,139,358
Currency realignment SEBEER - 247 812 4,850 47 = 6,381
Provided for the year REERE - 29,671 70,402 144,718 4,549 - 249,340
Impairment loss ERRHERR

recognised (note 6) (#iz6) - 4,832 9,867 132,095 1,132 2,523 150,449
Eliminated on reclassification ¥ 2R E M E RS

to investment properties - (1,161) - - - - (1,161)
Eliminated on transfer to assets #FEZ D BAFELEZ

classified as held for sale BER M - (165,334) (59,396) (508,821) (7,702) - (741,253)
Eliminated on disposals o E R 8 - - (4,415) (122,199) (1,981) - (128,595)
At 31st August, 2008 R-ZZENENA=T-H - 119,564 387,567 1,141,664 23,201 2,523 1,674,519
Currency realignment MEREEE - (401) (1,480) (5703) (383) = (7,967)
Provided for the year EEERE - 26,846 60,162 113,846 3,524 - 204,378
Impairment loss ERRHERR

recognised (note 6) (Hiit6) - - - 2,456 - - 2,456
Eliminated on reclassification ~ #HE 2% &M £ HisH

to investment properties - (1,096) - - - - (1,096)
Reclassification s - - 2,508 - - (2,508) -
Eliminated on disposals o E 8 - (2,569) (17,989) (77,511) (1,553) = (99,622)
Eliminated on transfer to assets #EZ D BABELEZ

classified as held for sale BRI - - - (21,920) - - (21,920)
Eliminated on disposal o — R A 0 R 8

of a subsidiary (note 38) (Hi£38) - - (404) - - - (404)
At 31st August, 2009 R-ZBEAENA=T-H - 142,344 430,364 1,152,832 24,789 15 1,750,344
CARRYING VALUES EEE
At 31st August, 2009 R-BEAENA=1-H 1,921 546,952 301,926 1,135,377 7,827 289,786 2,283,789

At 31t August, 2008 R=ZENENA=1-H 2,059 526,803 260852 1,052,889 11,264 298443 2,152,310
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 15. Y15 ~ #HBRRE (&)
THE COMPANY b N
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
equipment vehicles Total
B #E8

REE BHiF wE

HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000

FET FET FET
COST RS
At 1st September, 2007 A—EZELFENA—H 36,982 2,282 39,264
Additions 2 1,541 - 1,541
Disposals HE (10) - (10)
At 31st August, 2008 R=ZBENFNA=+—H 38,513 2,282 40,795
Additions 2 568 = 568
Disposals HE (379) = (379)
At 31st August, 2009 R-ZEZAFENA=+—H 38,702 2,282 40,984
DEPRECIATION e
At 1st September, 2007 R-ZEZEtFHhA—H 30,201 1,832 32,033
Provided for the year =FEERE 2,348 210 2,558
Eliminated on disposals o E RS (10) - (10)
At 31st August, 2008 R-ZEENFENA=+—H 32,539 2,042 34,581
Provided for the year =FEERE 2,060 123 2,183
Eliminated on disposals o E RS (378) - (378)
At 31st August, 2009 R-BBEAFNA=+—H 34,221 2,165 36,386
CARRYING VALUES BREE

At 31st August, 2009 R-ZEZEAFNA=+—H 4,481 117 4,598

At 31st August, 2008 R=-ZEENFNA=+—H 5,974 240 6,214
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 15. Y1 - B R HRE (E)
The cost of above items of property, plant and equipment are i EBERREBZAEASNUEGEETT A
depreciated, after taking into account of their estimated residual values, LT RIGREBEERR T ERIFE :

on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Freehold land Nil KAFEHN L i
Buildings 2% - 4.5% BF 2% - 4.5%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% - 33% B EBERRE 10% - 33%
Plant and machinery 10% - 20% R = 28 10% - 20%
Motor vehicles 20% - 30% B 20% - 30%
The carrying value of properties shown above comprises: L EYREESSR
Freehold land Construction
and buildings in progress
KARHH
T REF EEIR
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET

Properties situated in Hong Kong NRBEEUFEEAE

under medium-term leases EX=Niky/ES 15,887 22,680 - -
Properties situated outside R E B LN
Hong Kong:
Freehold KAFEE 1,921 2,059 - -
Medium-term leases hHEIEE 531,065 504,123 289,786 298,443

548,873 528,862 289,786 298,443
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16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. FNHEERIE
2009 2008
HK$’000 HKS’000
FET FET
The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise: AEBWBRNHERERE
Leasehold land situated in Hong Kong NREBBUATHESHEN L1
under medium-term leases 12,156 19,172
Leasehold land situated outside Hong Kong NREBBUINMATHEEFEN
under medium-term leases and medium-term = ith 2 AR HA 1 iR A A
land use rights 129,449 130,653
141,605 149,825
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEHRMS WD
Current assets RENEE 3,093 3,237
Non-current assets FRBEE 138,512 146,588
141,605 149,825
17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. BASH B 2 B =
2009 2008
HK$’000 HKS’000
FExT FET
Unlisted shares, at cost FELETRMG ARSI H 33,856 33,856
Amounts due from subsidiaries M 8 2 &) BT R 7K I8 3,643,307 3,549,521
Less: Impairment loss recognised R EE KRR (555,983) (560,043)
3,087,324 2,989,478
Amounts due to subsidiaries XK B A BFRE 486,653 350,109




FOUNTAIN SET (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  Annual Report 2009

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &% & A ¥R Rt st

For the year ended 31st August, 2009
BEZE—EENFNA=F—HILFE

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

17. BAGHI B 2 R R ()

2009 2008
HK$’000 HKS$’000
FET FET

Movements in the impairment loss recognised CHEIBMEBRRIZEEHNT :

are as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year F&EeR 560,043 647,447
Impairment loss reversed SR EIREE X (4,060) (87,404)
Balance at end of the year FHRERR 555,983 560,043

The amounts due from subsidiaries are repayable on demand. Except
for amounts of HK$919,924,000 (2008: HK$1,042,406,000) which bear
interest rate with reference to the average effective interest rate in the
bank borrowings of the Group, the remaining balances are interest-
free. In the opinion of the directors, the amounts are expected to be
realised within one year from the balance sheet date and accordingly,
such amounts have been classified as current assets. At the balance
sheet date, the amounts were not impaired as a result of the satisfactory
assessment of the current financial position and business prospects of
those subsidiaries by the management of the Group. An impairment
loss has been recognised if after the same assessment, the amount was
considered not recoverable. At the balance sheet date, the impairment
loss recognised is related to individually impaired amounts and the
relevant subsidiaries are considered not in a good financial position to

repay their debts.

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand. In the opinion of the directors, such amounts

have been classified as current liabilities.

MEARMAREREEREERE  Eh 2
£ %8919,924,0008 TAIR AN (Z BN\ F ¢
1,042,406,0008 7T) » L E S ESEREERIT
BENTFHERMERAE R THERAIARE o
REZFSNER  ZENERHNEERE—
FRAUSE > Bt ZERERIIARBEE o
REER ARFASEEEEREHZENE
DR 2B IR R K& 35 A0 2= AT 1T 2 5744
& 1t 75 BE R 1B 3 R (B o fis B AT AR E A RE A
BERRERIHBENKE  BERIAREE
Ko MEHER A ZFEEERKXIIRAES5
WERERERBEBEREDFER TN
BIRRTZHBAR e

IMBRAR ZRBREERNT REREERE
B -REBEESNER AENBECIEARD
afE-
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17. BAE B 1 B 25 (4)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31st August, RZBENFENB=1T—BRZ=ZZFEAFENA
2008 and 2009 are as follows: =+—BERATNEEMNBLARFEOT :
Place/country of Issued and Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ fully paid value of issued share capital/
registration share capital/ registered capital
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
R BETR KRR
BRREX HRH BRATRE/
WEARER Fifst,/ BX A/ BT BERAEEMNLE FEXH
Directly  Indirectly
=k i 5
% %
Dongguan Fuquan Garment Co., Ltd. (note a) The PRC United States Dollar - 55.5  Production and sales of
RERREXBRAR (Hida) HE ("USD") 3,499,352 garments
34993527 BERHFERR
Dongguan Fuyuen Garment Limited (note b) The PRC HK$7,500,000 - 95  Production and sales of
RERRRKXBRAR (M) HE 7,500,000/ 7T garments
BERBERK
REBEREBRAR (notea) (Wista) The PRC HK$15,000,000 - 100 Production and sales of
HE] 15,000,00078 7T garments
BERBERK
Dong Guan Fuyi Apparel Co,, Ltd. (note a) The PRC HK$12,800,000 - 100 Production and sales of
RERkREBRAR (#a) HE 12,800,000/ 75 garments
HERBERK
Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles The PRC HK$267,500,000 - 95 Dyeing, printing and
Printing & Dyeing Co,, Ltd. (note b) HE (2008: HK$257,500,000) sales of dyed fabrics
REVBREHBILBERAR (Hztn) 267,500,000/ 7T 36 DENHESR
(2008: 257,500,000/ 7T)
BYEEZ5HHBERAF (note a) (Hita) The PRC USD5,100,000 - 100 Production and sales
HE 5,100,000% 7T of yarns
HEREERY
Folktune Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100 - Investment holding
BEERAH e 2B REZR
Fountain Set Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100 - Trading of dyed fabrics
BHEXERAR B 3,000,000/ 7 and yams
enRedES

‘#-1
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17. LB A B = (&)

Proportion of nominal

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place/country of Issued and

incorporation/ fully paid value of issued share capital/

registration

share capital/

registered capital

Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
B3l BETR NG
BLREX HBREH BRITRE/
WEARER it/ BX BA/BRBRA BERAEEMILE TEEHR
Directly Indirectly
BH#E =
% %
Fountain Set Textiles (B.C.) Limited Canada Canadian Dollar 80 - Trading of fabrics and
JIIEYN (*CAD")500,000 garments
(Common shares) hRAKES
500,000/ 7T
(BER)
Fountain Set Textiles (Ontario) Ltd. Canada CAD300,100 51 - Trading of fabrics and
JIIEYN (Common shares) garments
300,107 BRAKES
(BEBR)
Goldlink Thread Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 100 - Trading of sewing
SERBERAR 5 5,000,000/ 7 threads
RYRES
Highscene Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 - 100 Trading of yarns
2] NG B 3,000,000 7T EHES
Hiway Textiles Limited Hong Kong HKS2 - 100 Trading of garments
BEHBERAR BA 2T KKES
Jiangyin Jintian Machinery Limited (note a) The PRC USD12,000,000 - 100 Manufacturing of
IeeBEMBRAR (Hifa) HE 12,000,000% 7T machineries
SUEEM
Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited (note a) The PRC USD78,000,000 - 100 Knitting, dyeing and sales
IREESBERRR (Hita) HE 78,000,000 7 of dyed fabrics and yarns
it REAHE
BhREY
Jiangmen Huilian Textile Company Limited (note a) The PRC HK$28,000,000 - 100  Production and sales
IFmERSRERAR (Hia) H 28,000,000/87% of yarns
HEREERY

88
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place/country of
incorporation/

17. BAEHE D AR (8)
Proportion of nominal
value of issued share capital/

Issued and
fully paid

registration share capital/

registered capital

Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company  Principal activities
R BETR KRR
BREREX B BRTRE/
WEARER fis/ BX BA /BRI RERAEEMNLEE  FEEE
Directly Indirectly
HiE B 3
% %
Kaiping Hui Hua Textiles Limited (note a) The PRC USD615,414 - 100  Production and sales of
HYEZHBERAR (Hita) HE 61541437 yamns
HEREERY
Lake Side Printing Factory Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100 - Trading of fabrics and
BEHEBERAR B 28T investment holding
HEESRREER
Ningbo Young Top Garments Co., Ltd (note a) The PRC USD16,079,462 - 55.5  Production and sales of
ERAMRKERAR (Hifa) i (2008: USD12,999,990) garments
16,079,4625 7T HEREERK
(2008: 12,999,990 )
Ocean Lanka (Private) Limited Democratic Sri Lanka Rupee - 60  Knitting, dyeing and
Socialist ("LKR")985,000,000 sales of dyed fabrics
Republic 985,000,000t i REAHERR
of Sri Lanka
HERFRE
AEERHNE
Ocean Yarn Dyeing Factory Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 - Investment holding
BEFBARAR B 2T REER
Prosperlink (Macao Commercial Macao Macau Pataca - 100 Trading of yarns,
Offshore) Limited b ("MOP")100,000 dyestuffs and
BZ(CRMEREZRE) ERAT 100,008 % chemicals
RYRELHES
RETEZSHEAERRF (note a) (Hizta) The PRC HK$1,000,000 - 100 Production and sales
H 1,000,000 75 of yarns
HERBERY
Triumph Luck Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 555  Trading of garments
IRERLE Bt 1,000,007 KRES
Yancheng Fuhui Textiles Limited (note a) The PRC USD35,000,000 - 100 Knitting, dyeing and sales
R RENSBRAR (i) H (2008: USD25,250,000) of dyed fabrics
35,000,000 7 and yams
(2008: 25,250,000% Tt i RENFEESH

k&#
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

a. Companies are established as wholly foreign owned enterprises in the PRC.

b. Companies are established as cooperative joint ventures in the PRC.

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results
of the Group for the year or formed a substantial portion of the assets
and liabilities of the Group at the balance sheet date. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,

result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end

of the year or at any time during the year.

18. CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE
On 27th April, 2009, Dongguan Fuan entered into an agreement

with an independent third party to sell the parcels of land located
at Dongguan Fuan Textiles Complex, Changan Town, Dongguan City,
Guangdong, the PRC and certain buildings and furniture, fixtures and
equipment (the “Properties”) for a total cash consideration of Renminbi
("RMB”)255,000,000 (approximately HK$288,136,000) payable in 5
installments (the "Property Agreement”). The Properties with a carrying
amount of HK$157,964,000 were included in the Group's assets classified
as held for sale as at 31st August, 2008 and a gain of HK$101,677,000 (net

of direct transaction costs) arose from the above transaction.

Out of the above consideration, RMB30,000,000 was settled during the
year upon the signing of the Property Agreement as the first installment.
The remaining 4 installments of RMB30,000,000, RMB40,000,000,
RMB77,500,000 and RMB77,500,000 are due for settlement in October
2009, April 2010, October 2010 and April 2011, respectively.

17. BAGHI B 2 R R ()

a. RPBEMUNEBECERINAF -

b. RHBENSELENESHERRRINDH -

LERRBDNHMBARDERALRAESRE
HUAFEXERFIEERGEEANEERE
BEERFEMMRI - ARXAEEIARHT
Htf B A RNFEEcIHRREBARITR

REAFELERIEAFEEARD  HBELQ
B EEMEREEFEER o

18. B K E
R-ZZEZAFNA-_t+tH REERHE—
EBUE=ZFTLHE UHELRFTEE
RERETRIETEAERZTHBHAD
THRETEF KM RERRKE (ZEY
1) #BHRESKER AR ®255000,0007T (£
288,136,0008 7t) * H AR ([HWESRE]) °
FZEYEZRTEE157,9640008 TER =T
NENBEZE+—BHAREELIBEABELE
ZEERN > LR F EEWEH101,677,000% JT
(MBREERXFEA) °

REAERES REABTYESBRFE XN
A K #30,000,0007T E 5 58 FRIE o B2 T 0 2R
B A A R 30,000,000 + A K #40,000,000
7T~ AR#77,500,0007T & A K#77,500,0007T 2
DER=ZZZ2EAETA - —ZFMA -
Z—EF+ARE——FOAIHPXZM -
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18. CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE (continued)

The receivable amounts are unsecured and interest-free. The fair value
of the deferred consideration at the date of initial recognition has been
determined as RMB231,643,000 (approximately HK$261,743,000) based
on the estimated future cash flows by applying a discount rate of 9.8%
per annum. As at 31st August, 2009, out of the consideration receivable
of HK$232,714,000, an amount of HK$64,042,000 was classified under

current assets.

Details of the above transaction are set out in the circular of the

Company dated 30th July, 2009.

19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

18. WK E (&)
ZERBARERBEEFREE - R LTHEAH
HeBELERE2Z R FEES ARME231,643,000
7T (#9261,743,0007% jT) » J5 1R 15 b 5T R KR
ERERBBEERISUTE - RZZEEAF
NA=+—H  EWRNKE232714,000% T+
64,042,000 T D EAREEE ©

FRLAXZHRCEARALRAAHNE-ZES
NEFEELR=THZBERA

19. TEE€M TR

THE GROUP
AEE
Current Non-current
8 IEFRED
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Derivative financial assets TTEERERE
Foreign currency forward contracts ZEEFIES K - 15,876 - -
Interest rate swap F| 2= = HA - -~ - 7,175
- 15,876 - 7,175
Derivative financial liabilities PTESRBE
Foreign currency forward contracts REIFINEE LK - 9,921 - -
Interest rate swap F) 2= 5 HA - - 30,898 2,309

- 9,921 30,898 2,309
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19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The principal terms of the foreign currency forward contracts

outstanding as at 31st August, 2008 are as follows:

Notional amount Currency conversion

28 contracts to sell USD61,000,000 USD1 : RMB6.4240 to 6.8553
in total

28 contracts to buy USD61,000,000 USD1 : RMB6.3194 to 6.7947
in total

The principal terms of the interest rate swap outstanding at the balance

sheet date are as follows:

Notional amount Interest rate swaps

At 31st August, 2009:

6 contracts with HK$900,000,000 From Hong Kong Interbank Offered
in total Rate (“HIBOR”) to fixed rate ranging

from 2.40% to 4.07%

At 31st August, 2008:
4 contracts with HK$800,000,000 From HIBOR to fixed rate ranging from
in total 2.40% to 4.07%

The above contracts will mature within four (2008: five) years from the
balance sheet date.

9. fTESR T A (&)
m—;;A$AH:+—E’ﬁ*ﬂ%%E%
NEEHNZ2ETEZHERAT :

HEESH Exing
28PEHAEH 1% 7T 7.6.42402
61,000,000 7T K1 & &I 6.8553 A R &
8B AEH 13X T 5H6.3194%2
61,000,000 7T I & & 6.7947 A\ R &
REER  BARIBANRRIEH 2 EBHRRAT

HEZHE AR =

R-ZZFBFAENA=1+—8:

617 & $£900,000,0005% 7T BB B IRITE N

HWE & B ([BERITE
E¥RENEEE
B F2.40%
£4.07%

R-BEENFENA=+—8:
4174 $£800,000,00078 & HEBIRITRER
HaEH EHEZEENT
2.40%%4.07%

LRENEBERAERBRFNE(ZEENF 5
F)RDHE -
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19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

19. fTE €T B (&)

THE COMPANY
ARQF]
Current Non-current
& EE
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Derivative financial assets TESHMEE
Foreign currency forward contracts Z=HIINESH - 15,876 - -
Interest rate swap Fl| 2= 5 HA - - - 7,175
- 15,876 - 7,175
Derivative financial liabilities PTESRBE
Interest rate swap F| 2= 5 B - - 30,898 2,309

The principal terms of the foreign currency forward contracts
outstanding as at 31st August, 2008 are as follows:

Notional amount Currency conversion

28 contracts to buy USD61,000,000 in total USD1 : RMB6.3194 to 6.7947

The principal terms of the interest rate swap outstanding at the balance sheet date

are as follows:

Notional amount Interest rate swaps
At 31st August, 2009:
6 contracts with HK$900,000,000 in total From HIBOR to fixed rates

ranging from 2.4% to 4.07%

At 31st August, 2008:
4 contracts with HK$800,000,000 in total From HIBOR to fixed rates
ranging from 2.40% to 4.07%

The above contracts will mature within four (2008: five) years from the

balance sheet date.

REZZBENFENA=+—-HB  HAZHNES
HNEEHNZEEZHGRMT ¢

HEESHE Exing
2HEAEH 17T 76.3194F
61,000,000 ST & X 6.7947 AR &

REER @ EARZHNAREL 2 EREHMT :

HESHR R

R=-ZBRENA=1+—8:
612 & $£900,000,00058 JT HEBRITRER

MER BEEZEENT
2.4%Z4.07%

R-BENENA=+—-8:
4134 ££800,000,00058 JT HABRITRZER
WEHN EEBEEENT
2.40%%4.07%

ERANBEEAHARHNE (CBBN\F &
SEEER
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19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
The fair values of the above derivative instruments are calculated in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on quoted
forward exchange rates and discounted cash flow analysis based on
the applicable yield curves of interest rates which were provided by

counterparty financial institutions.

20. DEFERRED TAX

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised by
the Group and the Company and movements thereon during the current

and prior reporting years:

19. fTEERM T A (&)

HEMBHRRME

FRTETANQATFEENREAREERN

A BUH T 75 B S 52 0400 1 FR R
FEENTSEARERRERRS
T 554

20. EEHIIE
AEBRADAARABEEERB

U 75 AR

mED T E

EREFE

BRNETRELERIREE (EE) REZFHNOT :

THE GROUP REH
Accelerated
tax Tax
depreciation losses Others Total
RABLIETE HIEEE Hit e
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT FHET FHETT
(note a)
(Ktzta)
At 1st September, 2007 R-ZEZLFENA—H 2,508 (4,464) (6,045) (8,001)
(Credited) charged to the REEWERA Gt A) HIkR

consolidated income statement (226) 3,079 10,978 13,831
Arising from deferred income HIEZEW A S| (Mfa27)

(note 27) - - (18,228) (18,228)
Effect of change in tax rate (note b) FiREB) 2 2 (ffatb) (143) = -~ (143)
At 31st August, 2008 R-EZEN\FENA=+—AH 2,139 (1,385) (13,295) (12,541)
(Credited) charged to the REEEWERA (GTA) Hk

consolidated income statement (333) 193 (183) (323)
At 31st August, 2009 R=BEAFNA=+—H 1,806 (1,192) (13,478) (12,864)
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20. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
As at 31st August, 2009, the Group had unused tax losses of

approximately HK$453 million (2008: HK$260 million) available for
offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of approximately HK$7 million (2008: HK$8 million) of such
losses, which represent tax losses incurred by certain of the Company’s
subsidiaries as it is expected that future taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised after management had
considered the future profitability of these subsidiaries. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining HK$446 million
(2008: HK$252 million) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. As at 31st August, 2009, of the above tax losses, an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$178 million (2008: HK$181 million) can be
carried forward for five years following the year when the losses were

incurred. Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

In addition, at 31st August, 2009, the Group had other deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$24 million (2008: HK$61
million) in respect of unrealised gain on transfer of plant and equipment
between subsidiaries, unrealised profit on inventories, allowance for
doubtful debts and inventories and interest capitalisation. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
differences as it is not certain that taxable profits will be available against

which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

According to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC, starting from
1st January, 2008, 10% withholding income tax will be imposed on
dividends relating to profits earned in the calendar year 2008 onwards to
foreign investors for the companies established in the PRC. For investors
incorporated in Hong Kong and holds at least 25% of the equity interest
in the PRC company, reduced rate of 5% will be applied. Deferred tax has
been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of the temporary differences attributable to such profits amounting to

HK$25,340,000 (2008: HK$18,455,000).

FEEEE(EE)FRELS -z issn

HEMBRRMEE

20. BB IE (&)
REZZRENA=+—H AEEFAAFEIE
$ AR 2R BRI B oK 4 A B TE 5 18 4 43453,000,000
B (ZZFZ )\ F 260,000,000 7t) ° i bt 1H
&5 18 1 497,000,000/ T (=== J\ & : 8,000,000
BLT)ERRA —HELEHEEE  KIHIEALD
AEZTHBARAMEENRESE £HE
EEEZEZEMBLARAMNKRREFEDE
TR FT AR 2R A FE R B B Al 6 AT K 85 M B TR G 1R o
& T (9 B 18 &5 18 446,000,000/ T (ZZEZ )\
£ 1 252,000,0005 jT) B A B2 78 8 7§ 2R 69 2 F
REMAEEARELHBEEE -N=BZN
FNA=+—HB LB EFED B2EH
178,000,0007% 7t (== J\ £ : 181,000,0007% 7T )
TRELEFEFEREFLF - HMuBEEE
AJREME IR BRI B8 77 o

o R=ZZRENA=+—0 > AEERH
MELRZEEERREFBORSRERE
FENRESRAR RERFERBURAEL

1L AE & 2 9 H 7 40080 & i = £ 4 224,000,000
BT (ZZZ/\F 161,000,000/ 7T) ° FEKEEHE
EERB BTG AERELATMEERESR
WABBRAZUTNBERERREERBERE °

REFECEMERE A-TENEF—F—
A RARBEIRZMD R BRI E SR HE
R-ZZZENFERUEFENEBANEGEANKREE
N10%FEHFEHR - REBEMRLBEFEH
BDARBRDB%ERNREE  HEAEREE
5% MZERFEBENEFERERNESTH
3R 3R Hi IE ZE B 1B B £525,340,0008 T (= F &
JUEE @ 18,455,000/ 7T) ©
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20. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

For the purposes of balance sheet presentation, certain deferred tax

assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is an analysis of the

HEMBHRRME

20. EFEFIIE (&)
HEEEEANSNTNS  ETEEMNEEE
REEOEN UTEREBM S WELEHE

deferred tax balances for reporting purposes: EERDAT
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIEEE 3,247 6,344
Deferred tax assets EEHIBEE (16,111) (18,885)
(12,864) (12,541)

THE COMPANY /N |
Accelerated
Tax tax

losses depreciation Total
BIERE RAIBIETE BE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
At 1st September, 2007 RZZEZ=+tFHAB—H - 296 296
Credited to the income statement AU RRETTA (211) (68) (279)
Effect of change in tax rate (note b) HEREBZEE (Wtb) - (17) (17)
At 31st August, 2008 RZEENFENB=1+—H (211) 211 =
Charged (credited) to the income statement FAURZEERAFIE (T A) 171 (171) -
At 31st August, 2009 R=BEAFNA=+—H (40) 40 -
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BE—EENFNA=F—HILFE

20. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

As at 31st August, 2009, the Company had unused tax losses of
HK$2,056,000 (2008: HK$3,100,000) available for offset against future
profits. A deferred tax has been recognised in respect of HK$251,000
(2008: HK$1,290,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the remaining HK$1,805,000 (2008:
HK$1,810,000) tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit

streams. The tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Notes:

a. These represent mainly deferred tax assets arising from unrealised profit
on inventories and intercompany transactions, and deferred tax liabilities
arising from unrealised loss on transfer of plant and equipment between
subsidiaries, withholding tax charged on certain PRC and overseas
subsidiaries and interest capitalisation at the amount of HK$2,089,000 (2008:
HK$1,008,000), HK$8,445,000 (2008: HK$2,050,000), HK$2,540,000 (2008:
HK$1,556,000), HK$3,248,000 (2008: HK$4,563,000) and HK$2,697,000 (2008:
HK$1,510,000), respectively.

b. On 26th June, 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed the Revenue
Bill 2008 which includes the reduction in corporate profits tax rate by 1%
to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment 2008/09. The effect of such
decrease has been reflected in measuring the deferred tax for the year

ended 31st August, 2008.

20. BB IE (48)
RZZEZAFENA=+—H  AAFTHEIER
5 R 2R 22 F B oK 2 A T T8 5 18 532,056,000 TT
(ZZZ )\ : 3,100,000/ t) ° Fi L IBE B+
#9251,0007% T (=== J\£ : 1,290,000/ T) E
HERAH—IHIELERIE - 88 T Wi THIE 181,805,000
BT (ZZZJ\F 1,810,000 7t) FE 5 88 78 8
HROBAREMAEEIARELEHBEE -
FiIE R 18 ] RE M PR Hi th 8877 o

a. WNEFERFENARERIZRABDVERZ R
EEZELERELE  URKEA R ZBEHER
REABOARERAEE BETHPERBINKE
AFMNBHENREANBCEEEMELENE
EHIBEERE 5 552,089,000 (ZEZ/\F:
1,008,000 7T) ~ 8,445,000/ T (= ZEZE )\ §F :
2,050,000 JT) ~ 2,540,000 T (ZZZ )\ F :
1,556,000 JT) ~ 3,248,000 T (=TT )\ F :
4,563,0007% 7T) % 2,697,000/ 5t (Z &)\ F :
1,510,000/ 5T ) °

b. R-ZZEZENFARA-t+ARH BEILLZEB
(2008F W ARBIER)  EREIFHLEEANS
BB REE1%R165% H=ZF/\ /T ARH
FEEN FRRETHANTZECRFEREZ
EENFNA=+-—BULEENEEREHRTF
DA AR o
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21. INVENTORIES 21. F&
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Spare parts B 133,695 165,561
Raw materials R 529,883 714,273
Work in progress B 270,332 311,010
Finished goods SRR M 246,846 274,837
1,180,756 1,465,681
22. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. BE . \EENAMEWFIE
THE GROUP
rEE
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade receivables & R IE 1,028,545 955,887
Bills receivable SREERRIE 132,119 145,443
Less: allowance for doubtful debts W REREE (25,582) (52,132)
1,135,082 1,049,198
Value-added-tax recoverable AT U =] 4 (B B 84,533 43,118
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables BE - ANREREMEKRRE 132,575 113,343
1,352,190 1,205,659
The Group allows an average credit period from 30 days to 90 days to its AEBRMFEIH0Z0RBHPTFEHEF - &%
customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills receivables FEERRFZRE KRR IRES) WERE DT

net of allowance for doubtful debts: M
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22. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22, E¥ - EERHMERNKIE (FE)
(continued)
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Trade and bills receivables EERZEEWIE
Not yet due REHA 630,573 566,719
Overdue 1 - 30 days BHI1-30K 186,687 246,935
Overdue 31 - 60 days BHI31-60K 186,197 128,256
Overdue > 60 days BEER60K 131,625 107,288
1,135,082 1,049,198

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines its credit limits. Credit sales are
made to customers with a satisfactory trustworthy credit history. Credit
limits attributed to customers are reviewed regularly. Trade receivables
that are neither past due nor impaired have good track records with the

Group.

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivable balance are debtors
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$504,509,000 (2008:
HK$482,479,000) which were past due at the balance sheet date for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss, as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are
either settled subsequently or still considered recoverable based on the
historical experience. The Group does not hold any collateral over these

balances.

FEBREMEIMHEFPA STMREER
FHEEEERAEHFERBE -FEHER
BRTRECHRRINEF -BEFFEREE
BT UM - AEBBBEY T ERENE X
FEWIRIDER RIFERRTE -

BREEAEEEERERENFEL SRR E
W BR & AR B £504,509,0008 T (ZFE N\ F :
482,479,000 ) » HNEHEAEBH - BN
EEZWREALZHAZESHEENERER
FEERRBETLZBNERTFRE - AEH
WEF U HRERAREBE AEEYERZ
SEBSEEMKER o
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22. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Ageing of trade and bills receivables which are past due but not

22 X -ZEERHMEWRTRIE (FE)

BHEXRTRENEXRRBRBGENRER :

impaired:

2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Overdue: i85
1 - 30 days 1-30K 186,687 246,935
31 - 60 days 31-60K 186,197 128,256
> 60 days 60K 131,625 107,288
504,509 482,479

No interest is charged on the overdue trade debtors. The Group has
provided fully for all trade and bills receivables over 360 days because
historical experience is such that trade and bills receivables that are
past due beyond 360 days are generally not recoverable. Trade and bills
receivables between 60 days and 360 days have been provided for based
on estimated irrecoverable amounts, determined by reference to past

default experience.

BHEXRYBRAFTAFE - AEBEFHE
BIORMAMBELERRBEREKBAZHAER
& WIEABELSRERBHBEBE360RMNE
ERFBRWHIRE-—REEEWRD - 60K £360
AZBNEERRERWFAT R EER
B £ 2RI S EBIERREERTEEMHREBME -
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22. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. 6% EBE R HMEWRKIE (&)
(continued)
Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts are as follows: REEBECEENT -
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Balance at beginning of the year FHEeR 52,132 19,740
Impairment loss recognised on trade EREFREXEREZBEINFIEN
and bills receivables, net BEEKFE 5,306 32,879
Amounts written off as uncollectible i 8E B9 A AT Uk 2] & 5B (31,872) (515)
Currency realignment SN E ERE 16 28
Balance at end of the year FRaEe 25,582 52,132

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired
trade and bills receivables with an aggregate balance of HK$25,582,000
(2008: HK$52,132,000) that are considered irrecoverable by management
after consideration on the credit quality of those individual customers,
the ongoing relationship with the Group and the ageing of these

receivables. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The Group’s trade, bills and other receivables that are denominated in
currencies other than functional currencies of the relevant group entities

are set out below:

RIRBHEEES H 488255820008 T (ZFF
NS 152,132,000 JT) B BRI E & £ Kk R &
BWHE EEERERZEEIZFNEE
BRE HEASEBEERRZSREBRENE
RE RAZZRBREEZLZRE - AEHIL
ERZEERISEEMIKR o

AEENEEEEERIREBUNERTE
MEX  ZEREMEBRRERINT :

2009 2008

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FET

RMB N 137,263 90,710
usD ETT 505,331 466,451
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23. BANK DEPOSITS WITH RESTRICTED USE/SHORT-
TERM BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND
CASH

The bank deposits with restricted use represent deposits placed by the
Group that are with restricted use for tax or custom duties to be incurred
by the Group which will expire within one year from the balance sheet
date and are therefore classified as current assets. Short-term bank
deposits represent deposits placed with the banks with maturity of three

months or less and are also classified as current assets.

The restricted bank deposits carried market interest rate ranging from
0.36% to 0.72% (2008: 0.72% to 0.81%) per annum. Bank balances and
short term bank deposits carried market interest rates ranging from

0.01% to 6.1% (2008: 0.15% to 4.80%) per annum.

The bank deposits with restricted use, short-term bank deposits and
bank balances and cash that are denominated in currencies other than

functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below:

HEMBHRRME

23. BRI AR ZBITEREHE
TER BOTEERAS

ERFABRZRVROTERNDEAEENRITER
RERHAZRYN BRAEEEHBRBER L
MEE ZESERVABEZRTER REE
FEF—FRIY AEZEFRIESRD
BE BHRTEREFRRETIEHES=
BRAIUATZ2EH  TOBERRBEE -

BIR&IZRITEFERDIETHEFFENF036%E
0.72% (ZZZEN\E : 0.72%ZF0.81%) 5T & ° R1T
HEIFRERRITERIZDEERMENF0.01%E
6.1% (ZZZT)\FE : 0.15%ZF4.80%) 5T & °

DB EEERIIEERUIEETENER
FHARCZRTER BEHRTERRRTER
RBRSEIMT

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
AN
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET FET FET
RMB AR 140,033 84,507 - -
usD =TT 159,488 287,483 11,777 20,887
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24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES/BILLS PAYABLE 24 EXRHEMBENREBARE
THE GROUP
rEE
2009 2008
HKs’000 HKS$'000
FET FET
Trade and bills payables EEREBENFIE 610,859 521,154
Accruals Bt FRIR 142,622 160,313
Other payables (note) H b FE S 508 (f5E) 136,511 138,893
889,992 820,360
Note:  As at 31st August, 2009, the balance included an amount of Fit: R-ZEZEAFNA=+-—8 Z&HaFEe
HK$19,827,000 in relation to an undertaking that the Group had %619,827,000/8 7T JI AXNEE T A BEE K
committed, at any time after one year from 27th April, 2009, (i) to make EER-_EBEZAENA=-+LtRAE—FEE
an one-off payment of HK$7,616,000 as compensation to release the AREEONRDREEBLZZPDERE — R EXM
Group’s obligation under an undertaking and operation agreement to a 7,616,000 T 2 HEBFEARKREAEERE
minority shareholder of Dongguan Fuan and (ii) to acquire the remaining REKE SR 2 & R (i) AKX E12,211,00058
10% equity interest in Dongguan Fuan from that minority shareholder at a TRZELBERRBIBERREZELERT10%
consideration of HK$12,211,000. Further details are set out in the circular ZRAEZ BEEFRIRENARATIBEHRAEZ

of the Company dated 30th July, 2009. ZENFLA=THAZBERA °
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24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES/BILLS PAYABLE
(continued)

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the balance sheet

HEMBHRRME

24 EXRHEMENRE BLRE

(%)

REHEH  EXRNAFENKREITNT :

date:
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Not yet due R EHA 280,902 278,030
Overdue 1 - 30 days BEF1-30K 34,074 38,443
Overdue 31 - 60 days #BHA31-60K 22,126 26,550
Overdue > 60 days BHER B60K 18,998 15,428
356,100 358,451

All bills payable of the Group are not yet due at the balance sheet date.

The average credit period on purchase of goods ranges from 30 days to
120 days. The Group has financial risk management policies in place to

ensure that payables are within the credit time frame.

The Group’s trade and other payables and bills payable that are
denominated in currencies other than functional currencies of the

relevant group entities are set out below:

REER  AEBZRARNRETIRED -

BENTHEERR0REN0R - ALED R
BV HREREBRE  UBREMSERGER

FEHRA -

AEEUEEEEERIEESR

LUSNEBESHE

MEXERAMENRARBESRERIINOT :

2009 2008

HK$’000 HKS'000

FET FET

RMB AR 219,304 210,091
usD ETT 330,760 285,704
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25. AMOUNTS DUE TO MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

26. CONSIDERATION PAYABLE
On 27th April, 2009, Folktune Limited (*Folktune”), a wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement with certain
minority shareholders of Dongguan Fuan (the “Transferors”) to acquire
from the Transferors in aggregate 39% of the equity interests in
Dongguan Fuan at a total consideration of HK$77,326,205 (the “Share
Transfer Agreement”). Upon completion of the Share Transfer Agreement,

Dongguan Fuan will become a 90% owned subsidiary of the Company.

Pursuant to the Share Transfer Agreement, the consideration is payable
by 5 installments, which are due to settle in August 2009, November

2009, May 2010, November 2010 and May 2011.

The payable amounts are unsecured and interest-free. The fair value of
the deferred consideration at the date of initial recognition has been
determined as HK$74,433,000 based on the estimated future cash flows
by applying a discount rate of 3.7% per annum. As at 31st August,
2009, out of the consideration payable of HK$74,988,000, an amount of
HK$28,672,000 was classified under current liabilities.

Details of the above transaction are set out in the circular of the

Company dated 30th July, 2009.

FEEEE(EE)FRELE —zsissg

HEMBRRMEE

25. R DB RFHKIA
ZEHEWEIER  REREERME -

ny

26. TR 1E

R-ZTZARFENA=++tH AARZ—HBZE
EMBAGREERAT ((RRE)HERTER
HETLEBRR(EBES DAL AERE
773262058 TR EELT WBRRERE L&
3% RARERE (REEZHZ]) - REHAR
EEZGZEZ  REEZRANDAEFI0%E
mZMBEAT

REREBEGE RESEMEM D BR
“EEAFENA ZBERAE+—F -B-
SRR —B-BFE+-AR-B-——FE
BESxA -

ZERNREREEFREE - RO LT HEAH
Hi 2 B KB 2 A F{E {8 %74,433,0007% TT
TREMAEFRRIE SR E KRR F E3.7%5
E-R-_ZEZEAFENA=+—H ENHRE
74,988,000 7T 1 » 28,672,00078 7T £ 1 & 7 B
8-

LA Z A FREHRARTRHA=F
ZNFLA=ZTHZBRRA
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27. DEFERRED INCOME
During the year ended 31st August, 2008, the Group received a

government subsidy of HK$72,912,000 for the purchase of certain assets,
which has been deferred to recognise as income over the useful lives of
the relevant assets upon the fulfillment of the relevant conditions during
the current year. An amount of HK$1,458,000 was amortised as income
during the year, with a corresponding adjustment to deferred tax assets

previously recognised.

27. EZEW A
BHE_ZZN\FNA=T—HLEEEHH &K
£EE W — BB RE72,912,0008 7T - ARE
BEETEE BUERAFEHBERMEBRK
GEREREEERFTHEIARA - FR
£ 7#$1,458,0008 T E B WA - L E N L AT
ReEEREEEFHAEERE -

28. RESTRUCTURING PROVISIONS 28. EAARE

HK’000

FET
At 1st September, 2007 R=-ZEZEtFHhA—H -
Provided for the year =FERE 56,400
Utilisation of provision EARE (44,705)
At 31st August, 2008 R=-ZEENFENA=+—H 11,695
Utilisation of provision ERARE (7,006)

At 31st August, 2009 R-ZEZEAFNB=1+—H 4,689

The provision outstanding as at 31st August, 2009 is expected to be

utilised within one year from the balance sheet date.

REZZEBAFNA=T-—BEHARERZEBR
HEEEERBH —FREEM -
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29. BANK BORROWINGS/BANK OVERDRAFTS 29. RITEE HITEX
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEH PN
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Bank loans RITEE 2,229,591 2,191,911 1,848,245 1,859,439
Import bills loans EOMER 98,965 87,936 - =
Bank overdrafts RITEX 969 4,086 - -
2,329,525 2,283,933 1,848,245 1,859,439
Repayable as follows: AR THIMBEE
On demand or within one year EBEREBER—FR 840,507 551,849 466,163 277,355
More than one year, but not —FUEETEBME
exceeding two years 640,634 572,568 613,415 422,568
More than two years, but not MEULERBBREE
exceeding five years 848,384 1,159,516 768,667 1,159,516
2,329,525 2,283,933 1,848,245 1,859,439
Less: Amount due on demand or W EEREER
within one year shown —FRIHSHE
under current liabilities EARBEEERE
- bank borrowings —R{ITEE
— due within one year - —FREH (839,538) (547,763) (466,163) (277,355)
- bank overdrafts —RITEX (969) (4,086) - =
Amount due after one year —FR2NPSEE 1,489,018 1,732,084 1,382,082 1,582,084

The above bank borrowings are unsecured at the balance sheet date.

REEH» EHMRTEELEER -
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29. BANK BORROWINGS/BANK OVERDRAFTS
(continued)

The bank borrowings of the Group and the Company are variable-rate
borrowings which mainly carry interest rates at HIBOR plus a spread,
ranging from 0.4% to 2.25% (2008: 0.4% to 1.5%) per annum in Hong
Kong or 100% to 105% (2008: 105%) of the People’s Bank of China Base
Lending Rate in the PRC.

The average effective interest rate on the bank borrowings of the Group
and the Company is 2.24% and 1.80% (2008: 3.74% and 3.42%) per
annum, respectively. In addition, the average effective interest rate on

the bank overdrafts of the Group is 4.63% (2008: 3.07%) per annum.

The Group’s bank borrowings and bank overdrafts that are denominated
in currencies other than functional currencies of the relevant group

entities are set out below:

HEUBRRME

29. BITHE RITEX (M)

AEBRADANRTEERFIERE  £E
REBRTAEREMLEZFE -FHEE
REBNFERF04%FE2.25% (ZFTN\F !
0.4%ZE1.5%) * MAFBEAFEARRTEES
MANZE100%ZE105% (ZFZ\EFE : 105%) °©

AEBRAQRARBRTEENFHIBTRNFERNZ
2 %2.24%K%1.80% (ZZEZN\F :3.74% K%
3.42%) o Mo REBRITEXNFEHERSF
ME%4.63% (ZZ2F)\F 1 3.07%) °

FEENEBEEEERIEEBUNEBITE
HRITEERRITERINOT -

THE GROUP
FEME
2009 2008
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
RMB AR 26,256 22,472
usD Epw 45,239 62,601




FEEEE(EE)FRELS -z issn

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &5 & B4 7§ 4B S Bt 5%

For the year ended 31st August, 2009
BE—EENFNA=F—HILFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL

30. R4

Number of

ordinary shares of

HK$0.20 each Amount
SRE{E0.20E 1T
VEBRGOEE &%
2009 & 2008 2009 & 2008
HK$'000
FET
Authorised: EERA
At beginning and end of the year REFERBRALR 1,400,000,000 280,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHBERA
At beginning and end of the year REFERBRAER 794,010,960 158,802

Y
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31. SHARE OPTIONS

A share option scheme (the "Option Scheme”), which will expire on
24th January, 2012, was adopted by the Company at the Extraordinary
General Meeting held on 25th January, 2002. The primary purpose of the
Option Scheme is to provide the Company with a flexible mean of giving
incentives to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing
benefits to the employees and for such other purposes as the board of
directors of the Company may approve from time to time. Under the
Option Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may offer to full
time employees, including full time executive directors, of the Company
and/or its subsidiaries who have completed the probation period options
to subscribe for shares in the Company in accordance with the terms of
the Option Scheme for the consideration of HKS$1 for each lot of share
options granted. The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Option Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of approval of the
Option Scheme. The Company may seek approval from shareholders of
the Company in general meeting to refresh the 10% limit. In addition,
the maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 30% (or such higher percentage as may be allowed under the
Listing Rules) of the total number of shares in issue from time to time.
The number of shares in respect of which options may be granted to
any employee in any 12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1% of
the total number of shares of the Company in issue, subject to approval
from shareholders of the Company. Options granted must be taken
within 28 days of the date of grant or such longer or shorter period
as the board of directors of the Company may think fit. The minimum
period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised is
one year or such other period as the board of directors of the Company
may think fit commencing from the date of grant (*Hold-up period”).
An option period, at the absolute discretion of the board of directors
of the Company, shall commence on the expiry of the Hold-up period
and expire no later than the 10th anniversary of the date of grant. The
exercise price is determined by the board of directors of the Company

and will be at least the highest of the followings:

HEMBHRRME

31. R HE
—EER-BE-—F B+ NARKNE

B E (RAREAEDEEARADTAR=-_ZE
F—B-+THEBETHEIRRRS LHE#H -
RREFENEZENAREA DR ATEESSR

SR RE KRB WERSIREERAREH®
AAREBSETRMENEMBENMSIRE -
BEEZSFX -REIRENE AQAFES
BUEAREFENRRBEFEAAAR HE
MBARERBRAHNEBES (BEZRHH
TES)AREUARBEATRG > 8RESR

RENKER BT - RIEZRETEFRREN

ABREMBITHRAGEAE B THEB

B EEREEANCHITROEENI0% -

RAABAERRAEESRBRMAE  EHU
10%H9 EFR o b oh  ARIZZIRFEST B R A A B E
AT A 32 AR FE AT 21 2 1R A8 15 R AT R IR
BOEMBTHROCEY BSFEEBEAA
Al N2 AT IR0 B2 HI30% (SRR L #3 Bl
BHFNES LR) - REEBREMES » FA—
UEENEM+T=EABER HRTEEE
ERBRENBROAAE BSTAEEBALAE
BITROGEHNI% EEXAERRERE A
BBAAR AN EEEARERABEENE A
BEIBREHERNENMESETHRRE &
EXEBRIABREARH —FREQATAESTSE
ARAAHBEENEHMGEARB (SEEH]) BEAR

BE AAFEERBE - RBEHARLAAEERSE
REHMEEET  SHISEHEREBRAG
ERTERBHARTBEEER ABEALX
NEEBERT  BXBEAUT=EFHNBRSE
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31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 31. IR (&)

a) the closing price of shares at the date of grant of a share option; a) BRORIBREFLEBEHWRTE:

b) the average closing price of the shares for the five business days by BORIRERHBZAAEEZERNYF
immediately preceding the date of grant; and HHE: &

c)  the nominal value of a share. o ROMWSKRMEME-

No share options were granted or exercised during the year and no share AEFEERUERABREERERITERREAFER

options were outstanding during the year or at the balance sheet date. HEE BN ERRELER o

32. RESERVES 32. e
THE COMPANY
PN
Capital
Share redemption Retained
premium reserve profits Total
BEXx
IR 13 3% & BB %5 REER BE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET FETT
At 1st September, 2007 R-ZEZELtFENA—H 197,124 210 544,115 741,449
Profit for the year =EEZER - - 25,209 25,209
Dividends paid EKRE - - (39,700) (39,700)
At 31st August, 2008 R-ZEENFENA=+—H 197,124 210 529,624 726,958
Profit for the year =EEZEA - - 568 568
At 31st August, 2009 R-BZARFENA=1+—H 197,124 210 530,192 727,526
The Company’s reserves available for distribution to equity holders R-ZEBEEANENA=+T—HB 0B AREDS
as dividends at 31st August, 2009 represented the retained profits of EEARENAQNTEHE (NEREEAN) B
HK$530,192,000 (2008: HK$529,624,000). 530,192,0008 5t (=ZZEZ )\ & : 529,624,000/8

JT) °
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33. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the
borrowings disclosed in note 29, equity attributable to equity holders of

the Company, comprising issued share capital and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on an on-
going basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of
capital and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues
and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption

of existing debt.

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

HEMBHRRME

33. EXERERE
AEBMEBREAZAN  ERBERAEESE
BENRELY FAREAMAEBEER>
MHRETE BREZEASHBAER-
AEE R EE 5 o

FEENEARBREGR (EDBEME29PR
RENEE) RAQXAESZSEARGES (B
FEBRITRARZEFE) ©

AR EERFEEERNELRE - FRR
Ao EFETRELANBARZEER
WEERR RBEEENES AEEKES
RBERE - BRITHREBOROERBTHE
BREOREEB AT EHREBEREE -

3. £ T A
(a) &BMTAER

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
AEE AAH
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS'000
FETT FET FET FHET
Financial assets SMEE
Loans and receivables ERRERRE (B
(including cash and ReRkERRELER)
cash equivalents) 2,241,814 1,766,320 3,225,712 3,044,733
Derivative financial fTESmMIA
instruments - 23,051 - 23,051
Financial liabilities cREsE
Amortised cost R 3,169,099 2,987,242 2,334,927 2,209,733
Derivative financial TEEmIA
instruments 30,898 12,230 30,898 2,309
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The major financial instruments of the Group and the Company
include consideration receivable, trade, bills and other receivables,
amounts due from/to subsidiaries, amounts due to minority
shareholders, bank deposits, bank balances and cash, derivative
financial instruments, trade and other payables, bills payable,
consideration payable, bank borrowings and bank overdrafts. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include market
risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

Market risk
(i)  Currency risk
Certain entities in the Group have foreign currency

transactions, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The Group manages and monitors foreign exchange exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner. The Group has entered into foreign

currency forward contracts to mitigate the risk.

FEEEE(EE)FRELS -z issn

HEMBRRMEE

34. £ T B (&)

(b)

BERBEERERBEE
AEBRARANETEESHIEGFERK
RE -EX FEREGERNRE B
DAFR/XHBRANHIE  RDBR
RORE -ROTER RTEERES
TTEESHMIT A EXERHMEMNRE - E
NRE - BARE  RTEERRITESX -
HZEEsRITAAENARBEDT SRR
(BE¥EBERAZEAR) FERBRRE
EAR - TXHIBBANFREZERA
BHBEK EEEEEREEZSAR
LAHE fR B2 B M 78 R0 it R EUE B 15 5 o

T 35 [ B

(i) Bk
FEEETERBINERS  HAE
B35 R IME R o

AEBEEREZIMERE - MUER
REMBMRIEZEE - A& H
EHITEHIIESH  UREZZER
B o
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 34. M T A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) (b) BHEREEEZRBEE (E)
Market risk (continued) ™ % Bk ()
(i)  Currency risk (continued) (i) BEE(E)

At the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts of foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities
and derivative financial instruments of the Group and the
Company that are considered significant by the management

are as follows:

REER EEERRBEANAE
BREAABUNEINENELEER
BERTESHTIANKREAENT ¢

Monetary assets and liabilities: EBEEREE:
THE GROUP
rEE
Assets Liabilities
BE =R+
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET FHET FHET
usD =T 664,819 753,934 375,999 348,305
RMB AR 510,010 175,217 245,560 232,563
THE COMPANY
AT
Assets Liabilities
BE =R
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHETT FET FETT FHET
usb EY 11,777 20,887 - =
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

HEMBRRME

34. £ T B (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) (b) BMBEKREEAERKE (&)
Market risk (continued) ™ % Bk ()
(i)  Currency risk (continued) (i) E#Ek(E
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEH AT
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HKS’000
FET FET FExT FET
Derivative financial assets PTESmEE
Contracts to sell RMB and BEHARBREA
buy USD ETMEN - 15,876 - 15,876
Derivative financial liabilities PTESmBE
Contracts to buy RMB and BEAARBREH
sell USD ETHELN - 9,921 - -
Sensitivity analysis BRE DM

As HKS is pegged with USD, currency risk in relation to USD
denominated monetary assets/liabilities is expected to be
minimal. The Group is mainly exposed to the risk of fluctuation

of RMB.

The following table details the sensitivity of the Group to
a 5% increase and decrease in RMB against HKS. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and derivative financial instruments and adjusts their
translation or fair value in the case of the derivative financial
instruments at the year end for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. On this basis, there will be a decrease (an
increase) in pre-tax loss for the year where RMB strengthens

against HKS by 5%, and vice versa.

MAB TR TH  AREREUE
THENEREE SENERER
B - AEBETESRAREREE

TRHFMABINAEERARKE L BT
FHE KRB AE5%H SRR E © 5%4 [ E
ZEBAERBERNMER R EE
FE %7 [E 2= 7] g€ & 38 % B 19 Tk AT R A
WHRELE -RESMESREE
REEUMNEHIENEREE RITE
TR IR WHRFEIZSBHINE RS
BFEHBESITESMIAEZA T
BE REEE EARBZEBELTHE
5% AEERABEEERD (15
m o RZIRR e
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 34. M T A (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) (b) MEEREREHZERBEE (&)
Market risk (continued) ™5 5 i ()
(i)  Currency risk (continued) (i) BEE(E)
Monetary assets and liabilities: EBEEREE:
THE GROUP
rER
RMB Impact
ARBEE
2009 2008
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Decrease (increase) in loss for the year ~ ANEEEER A (32 N) 13,223 (2,867)
For the outstanding foreign currency forward contracts, if the MEARDNENEHIIESLIMS 4
forward foreign exchange rate of RMB against USD had been ARBHETHERBAIEER EFH
5% higher/lower, pre-tax loss for the year would decrease T k5% @ BIRFEERAIEIEE D (18
(increase) by: )
Derivative financial instruments: fTEE€/mT A :
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
REH Z/NG
2009 2008 2009 2008
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET
Contracts to sell RMB and BEHARBREA
buy USD ETMEN - 19,824 - 19,824
Contracts to buy RMB and BEAAREBREY

sell USD ETHEYN - (17,642) - =
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group and the Company are exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk primarily in relation to variable-rate bank
balances and borrowings. It is the Group’s policy to keep its
bank balances and borrowings at floating rate of interests
so as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk. The Group's
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of HIBOR arising from the Group’s Hong Kong
dollar denominated borrowings. In order to minimise the risk,
the Group entered into certain interest rate swaps to partially
hedge against its exposure to variable-rate bank balances and

borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for both non-derivative
(including variable-rate borrowings only as the directors
consider the exposure on bank balances is not significant) and
derivative instruments at the balance sheet date. The analysis
is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding
at the balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole
year. A 50 basis points increase or decrease in interest rate
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management'’s

assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

For non-derivative bank borrowings, if interest rate had been
50 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's pre-tax loss and the Company’s pre-tax
profit for the year would increase/decrease by HK$11,648,000
and decrease/increase HK$9,241,000 (2008: increase/decrease
by HKS$11,420,000 and decrease/increase by HK$9,297,000),

respectively.

EEE¥(RE)ARSS

—ERENEER

HEMBRRMEE

34. £ T B (&)

(b)

BEEREEBEREE (&)
™ 4% &k ()
(ii)  FJE @ g

REERADANRSRERN REM
FERIFERTEEREERA - &
SENBRRREFHERTEFIREE
MFEFIRUBE A P EEFN R -
AEBNREREINXREMERESR
REBRTEEFSREFACIBAE
BLBTIENEER - BEERR
AEEHETETAREH UFZFE
RITEFREENFIRE R ET D
o

THBRBRESTRBIFTELR (E
BREIEEE HESRABHRITE
BRATAREZRBIEFER) RITET
EREERNFREARERE - BED
MOBRNEEA S REENEBER
BEAFREFEANGRAREE -G
FTEEBASAB2 /A REARL TR
FSOEEHN AR  KREEEHF
RA RS BRI o

=K

BRETERTEEMS - WARL

ERETE AXEENAFERAE
BRAD B WA F E R A B A D B
®n,H A RE D 011,648,000
B JT % 9,241,0008 T (== Z )\ F :
1210/ 411,420,000 7T K 2
#4019,297,0005& 7T.) °
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(ii) Interest rate risk (continued)
For derivative financial instruments, if HIBOR had been 50
basis points higher and all other variables were held constant,
the Group's pre-tax loss and the Company’s pre-tax profit for
the year would decrease and increase by the same amount of

HK$8,587,000 (2008: HK$8,260,000), respectively.

Credit risk

As at 31st August, 2009, the maximum exposure to credit risk by
the Group and the Company which will cause a financial loss due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and

financial guarantees provided is arising from:

. the carrying amounts of the recognised financial assets as

stated in the balance sheets; and

. the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial

guarantee issued by the Company as disclosed in note 37.

In order to manage its credit risk, management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. Credit sales of
products are only made to customers with good repayment history.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of debt on a
collective and on-going basis to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. A net impairment loss
of HK$5,306,000 (2008: HK$32,879,000) in respect of the trade
receivables was recognised by the Group for the year. Furthermore,
the Company only provides financial guarantees to its subsidiaries
after a careful consideration of its subsidiaries’ financial conditions.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the

Group's and the Company'’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

HEMBHRRME

34, R T B (&)

(b)

BEEBEEBEREE (&)
45 B ()
(ii) 7 E 25z ()
BOTEESRITAMS @ WEFBRITE
ERE EFASOEER  MAEHME

EBERARATNAREERAZEFE D
BlR 4> & 32 40 48 [5) <& E68,587,00078 T
(ZZBZ )\ : 8,260,000/87T) °

EERK

REZZBEZEAENA=1T—H AEERK
AR FHRERITEERRHETEE
RMEBERVEEINERSEERRDE
TEEEE:

. BEEBRF2VCHEIALHEEN
BREE &

- ME3VAEERBEAQRMBEHME
ERZARBENE -

REBHEERK  AEENEEEEZ
K—#HABEEEEFERE SEFH
REMEZEERF  UBAKERETER
EEfEE EREEHEERETASR
REERTEHENEL i AEEER
ERERFEEERFIEBENATWEFEE
DU AR SR U Bl FR BB B MR BB
Ko FR  AEBEHEERBRKRERR
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds of the Group and the Company is
limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit

ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks with high credit ratings and
consideration receivable due from one counterparty, the Group
has no significant concentration of credit risk on trade and other
receivables or other financial assets, with exposure spread over
a number of counterparties and customers. The directors of the
Company consider the default risk of consideration receivable is
low in view of satisfactory subsequent settlement of RMB30,000,000
in October 2009 and the fact that the Group has retained the
ownership title of the Properties (see note 18) currently according

to the Property Agreement.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group and the
Company monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s and the Company’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. Management monitors the utilisation of
bank borrowings and ensures compliance with the relevant loan

covenants.

Other than equity, the Group and the Company relies on bank
borrowings as a significant source of liquidity. As at 31st August,
2009, the available unutilised banking facilities of the Group and
the Company are approximately HK$1,673 million and HK$263
million (2008: HK$2,310 million and HK$126 million), respectively.

FEEEE(EE)FRELS -z issn

HEMBRRMEE
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(b)
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FERR ()
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables detail the Group’s and the Company'’s
remaining contractual maturity for their financial liabilities
and derivatives financial liabilities (including foreign currency
forward and interest rate swaps contracts). For non-derivative
financial liabilities, the tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of the financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group and the Company can be required

to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.

For derivative instruments settled on a net basis, undiscounted net
cash flows are presented. Whereas they require gross settlement,
the undiscounted gross outflow (inflow) on these derivatives are

shown on the tables.

HEMBHRRME

34, R T B (&)

(b)

BEEEEEREREE (&)
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 34. R T A (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) (b) BMBEKREEAERKE (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) REES R (H)
THE GROUP REH
Weighted Carrying
average Less than Total amount at
effective 1 month or 3 months undiscounted  31st August,
interestrate  ondemand  1-3 months to1year  Over1year cash flows 2009
R-ZENF
mEFE  SR-EAR AERRE NB=t-H

E¥AE  SEER -2=fR Z@AE-§  RBBE-F  REEE MEEE
% HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FER

2009 ZEENE
Non-derivative financial FTESRER

liabilities
Trade and other payables EEREMEMSTE - 211,731 179,860 38,136 - 429,727 429,727
Bills payable EfZE - 103,735 138,591 12,433 - 254,759 254,759
Amounts due to minority RO HRRTE

shareholders - 80,100 - - - 80,100 80,100
Consideration payable EfRRE 3.70 9,097 9,097 12,130 47,002 77,326 74,988
Bank borrowings RITRE 192 301,183 172,659 399,891 1,530,689 2,404,422 2,328,556
Bank overdrafts RITEX 463 972 - - - 972 969

706,818 500,207 462,590 1,577,691 3,247,306 3,169,099

Derivatives - net settlement fIETBE-URELE
Interest rate swaps FlZBE 0.46 1,721 6,231 13,259 9,828 31,039 30,898
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 34. M T A (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) (b) MEEREREHZERBEE (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) B E L R ()
THE GROUP TEH
Weighted Carrying
average Less than Total amount at
effective 1 month or 3 months undiscounted  31st August,
interestrate  ondemand  1-3 months tolyear  Over1year cash flows 2008
R-ZBNF
mEFS  SR-EAR AHREE NB=1-H
RN Z HEER -Z=fR =ZAAZ-F BB-F REAR WiREE
% HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

FEn FEx FEn FEx FEx FE7

2008 —EZTN\E
Non-derivative financial FESRER

liabilities
Trade and other payables BERHMEMNTE - 209,749 230,177 24,466 - 464,392 464,392
Bills payable EFNZE - 68,540 85,182 8,981 - 162,703 162,703
Amounts due to minority RHBRRFE

shareholders - 76,214 - - - 76,214 76,214
Bank borrowings RITEHE 248 118,432 211,498 270,029 1,796,452 2,396,411 2,279,847
Bank overdrafts RITEX 3.07 4,09 - - - 4,09 4,086

477,031 526,857 303,476 1,796,452 3,103,816 2,987,242
Derivatives - net settlement TEIA-URELE
Interest rate swaps FlZ 5 217 214 - 939 1,399 2,552 2,309
Derivatives - gross settlement ~ fT£TE-NAHLE
Foreign currency forward contracts & E3SMNE R )
- outflow - - 50,737 101,474 323,937 - 476,148 N/A
- inflow -RA - (50,273) (99,917) (316,037) - (466,227) N/A
464 1,557 7,900 - 9,921 9,921
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

FEEEE(EE)FRELS -z issn

HEMBRRME

34. £F T B (&)
(b) PMEEAREEEERKE (&)

Liquidity risk (continued) REES R (H)
THE COMPANY VNN
Weighted Carrying
average Less than Total amount at
effective 1 month or 3 months undiscounted  31st August,
interestrate  ondemand  1-3 months to1year  Over1year cash flows 2009
RZBENE
mE¥y  SR-EA AERREE NA=1-H
BHA= FEER -Z=ff =M@AZE-% BB-F REAE WEREE
% HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TET TET TEr TET TEx Tér
2009 b2 )2
Non-derivative financial FTELRER
liabilities
Other payables HinEM0E - 29 - - - 29 29
Amounts due to subsidiaries Rt B A AFE - 486,653 - - - 486,653 486,653
Bank borrowings RTEE 1.48 69,787 145,519 276,908 1,412,754 1,904,968 1,848,245
556,469 145,519 276,908 1,412,754 2,391,650 2,334,927
Derivatives - net settlement  $1£ T A-INFHEE
Interest rate swaps il 0.46 1,721 6,231 13,259 9,828 31,039 30,898
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 34. M T A (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) (b) MEEREREHZERBEE (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) B E L R ()
THE COMPANY RAF
Weighted Carrying
average Less than Total amount at
effective 1 month or 3 months undiscounted  31st August,
interestrate  ondemand  1-3 months to1year  Over1year cash flows 2008
R-ZBNF
mEFS  SR-EAR AHREE NB=1-H
RN Z HEER -Z=fR =ZAAZ-F BB-F REAR WiREE
% HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

FEn FEx FEn FEn FEx FE7

2008 “E2EN\E
Non-derivative financial FTESREAR

liabilities
Other payables HtEARE - 154 31 - - 185 185
Amounts due to subsidiaries Rt B2 A E - 350,109 - - - 350,109 350,109
Bank borrowings RITEE 239 3,683 90,030 226,085 1,644,571 1,964,369 1,859,439

353,946 90,061 226,085 1,644,571 2,314,663 2,209,733

Derivatives - net settlement  fTA T E-NNBHELE
Interest rate swaps FlZ=EH 217 214 - 939 1,399 2,552 2,309
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 34. R T A (&)
(c) Fair value () RAFEE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are THEEREMABENAFEENDIRUT

determined as follows: BE:

.« the fair value of derivative financial instruments are calculated - PTESRIANAFEENDEARE
using generally accepted pricing models based on quoted BER  TUEFHFEEBRENE
forward exchange rates and discounted cash flow analysis AR GEMEEN TS EE
based on the applicable yield curves of interest rates provided EZRUBRERESPNELEMTHE ©
by counterparty financial institutions.

«  the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities . HthemEEREMEE TEER
(excluding derivative financial instruments) are determined in TERMNWRAFEEEDRELARE
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on BEEANUTBEENEAMER S ER
discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable RUBRBEESREIMRR S EREN
current market transactions and dealer quotes for similar TEWNREMEE
instruments.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of financial EERAEREMBERRAUEHER AN

assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the REHNeRmEERSREBENREAEREKSE

consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values. HAFEEEE -
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35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. EAERE
THE GROUP
rEHE
2009 2008
HK$’000 HKS'000
FExT FET
Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition TEBEBEEYE  HEREBEN
of property, plant and equipment contracted ERNEEGEHBBRERAE
for but not provided in the consolidated EHEHENEARRX
financial statements 73,268 143,516
Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition MERABEYE  KERZEN
of property, plant and equipment authorised EEEBREANESRHEX
but not contracted for 23,353 19,037
The Company had no significant capital commitments at the balance REER » XRRWESE KHERRE -
sheet date.
36. OPERATING LEASES 36. ¥EHE
The Group as lessee: AEBEAEBAA :
THE GROUP
rEHE
2009 2008
HK$’000 HKS'000
FExT FET
Minimum lease payments paid under EFEREEREMXGTHN
operating leases during the year: BREEEZE
Land and buildings T REF 48,568 44,244
Plant and machinery B 5 4 28 15,546 23,201
64,114 67,445
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36. OPERATING LEASES (continued) 36. EEME (80

The Group as lessee: (continued) AEBEERAEA @ (&)

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future REER AEERTTEELEEHEMNRR
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which BEEEAESHAENRTHEE A (T :

fall due as follows:

THE GROUP
rEE
2009 2008
Land and Plant and Land and Plant and
buildings  machinery buildings machinery
T REF BE#EE TiHRETF R = 25
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
FET FETT FET FET
Within one year —FR 46,894 8,547 53,697 15,238
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_FZFREFR
(BEEMEBFEEA) 126,480 22,689 164,005 41,072
Over five years BEUE 59,309 15,370 46,694 21,344
232,683 46,606 264,396 77,654
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for EEHESYH I ANEEREETFRAZR TR
certain of its office premises and factories. Leases are negotiated for NENHES KLEFNHEHEEHR Lt HRES
terms ranging from one to twenty five years for land and buildings and BN F—Z_+HEHE BEEHSEENF
from three to ten years for plant and machinery. There is no contingent =EETEZRE  c WABERAREBESZHE

rental arrangement.
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36. OPERATING LEASES (continued)

The Group as lessor:

Gross rental income earned from investment properties of the Group
during the year was HK$5,380,000 (2008: HK$4,305,000). The related
outgoings amounted to HK$725,000 (2008: HK$657,000).

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants, in
respect of rented premises, for the following future minimum lease

payments:

HEUBRRME

36. €EHE (&)

AEBEEREHAA :
REEAEBHRBRENETRESNESHALR
{8 %5,380,0008 T (= Z & J\F : 4,305,000/
7)o HAEBEM X K A7250008 T (ZEE )\ :
657,000/ 7T) °

REER  AEERLEAMECEBFITLE
MR REEERADT :

THE GROUP
FEE

2009 2008

HK$’000 HKS’000

FET FET

Within one year —FR 4,747 3,744
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_EZFRER

(BERMEBRFEER) 2,196 1,845

6,943 5,589

The Company had no significant operating lease commitments or

arrangements at the balance sheet dates.

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
THE COMPANY

The Company has given limited guarantees to various banks to secure
general banking and loan facilities granted to certain subsidiaries to the
extent of HK$2,723,900,000 (2008: HK$3,274,450,000). As at 31st August,
2009, the aggregate amounts utilised by these subsidiaries amounted to

HK$830,506,000 (2008: HK$812,934,000).

REER  AARALEEANEEREREDN

37. AREE

PN
AAREMZEBRTHTFERFINERESR
2,723,900,000%% jt (= ZF = )\ £ : 3,274,450,000
BT ERZERTHTETHEAR—RE
MREFNER - R=ZZRENA=+—H >
ZE M B A B E E A 1Y 42 58 /830,506,000 JT
(ZZZ)\F © 812,934,000/ ) °
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38. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 3rd August, 2009, the Group disposed of its entire interest in the

issued capital of a wholly-owned subsidiary, Fountain Set (U.K.) Limited.

The net assets of Fountain Set (U.K.) Limited at the date of disposal were

as follows:

38. HE—REMHNE QA
R-ZZEZAFENA=ZR  FAEBHE-—B2E
Ff$ & 2% T Fountain Set (U.K.) Limited© 2 1T R 4
2 ZEREZ ° Fountain Set (U.K.) Limited Hi &
Az EREFENT :

HK$’000
FET
Net assets disposed of: HENEEZFE:
Property, plant and equipment Yz BRRE 151
Other receivables A fE Uk SR8 350
501
Translation reserve released B R EE (570)
(69)
Gain on disposal HEMBWE 544
Total consideration satisfied by PURFERE A R B
deferred consideration 475

The deferred consideration will be settled in cash by the acquirer on or

before 31st December, 2009.

EEREZER-"ZFZNF+-A=+t—-HB==
AIEAWEEUBRERM -
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38. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)
On 11th January, 2008, the Group disposed of its entire interest in the

issued share capital of a wholly-owned subsidiary, Folklore Industries
Limited. The net assets of Folklore Industries Limited at the date of

disposal were as follows:

38. HE—EHE R E (&)
R=ZZBENF-A+—RH AEELHE-—BZ
& [ff B 2 BlFolklore Industries Limited T 2% 1T i%
I 2 = EBRE S © Folklore Industries Limited 4 H
EHBMZEERFENT :

HKS$’000
FET
Net assets disposed of: HENEEZFE:

Prepaid lease payments FEHENRE 686
Gain on disposal & TS i 224
Total consideration satisfied by cash and DRERHEMEEZRERA

cash inflow arising on disposal T2 ELE 910

39. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme registered under the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the "ORSO Scheme”) and
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) established
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance for all the
eligible employees of the Group in Hong Kong. The assets of both
schemes are held separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of trustees. The retirement benefits cost charged to the
consolidated income statement represents the contributions payable to

the funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

Employees of the Group in other jurisdictions currently participate
in state-sponsored pension scheme or defined contribution schemes
operated by the Government of such jurisdictions. The Group are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with

respect to the schemes is to make the required contributions.

39, BINE RIS &I
AREBRBEBERNKGTEURGIFMA L —EHE
B RET 8 ([HEERMKEE) RBEES EQ
BestaEAIR L —ERFME L ABEE ([8
BEitEl FHREAERNAERETBES -
EMEENEENHERABILFERERE -
TE 4R U & BR 79 40 BR B9 3B R 18 F 51 8I A AR T3 2R
SEERBT I ELL BT ENEAHER -

FEBHMBAZBENREESRIESEZAE
B I AT & 42 19 Bl 3R PR 78 A B 81 50 E BR AT
B -AEBAXKEEFMNSE TEDLHKT
ZEFAEREINES FAEEHZAETEN
HE-EERERAEELMRR -
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39. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (continued)

As at 31 August, 2009, there was no significant forfeited contribution
(2008: Nil), which arose upon employees leaving the retirement benefits

schemes, available to reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions, net of forfeited
contributions of HK$49,000 (2008: HK$521,000), amounting to
HK$24,560,000 (2008: HK$27,381,000) has been charged to the

consolidated income statement.

40. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
(a) Related party balances

Details of the Group’s outstanding balances with related parties are

set out in the consolidated balance sheet and in note 25.

Details of the Company’s outstanding balances with related parties

are set out in the balance sheet and in note 17.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key

management during the year was as follows:

39. ERBERGFHE (8)

R—ZZEAENA=+—-0 EESEHRIK
BRI ETMRBNERLEFEA (ZBBNE
®) 0 ME0E Y A AR R R B K o

EEFREWRERNBRAERABRFEHRESHE
7R {B %24,560,0007% T (=& F J\ £ : 27,381,000
BT 0 B E HIRER WY H5R49,0005 T (=
ZZ)\F :521,00087T) °

40. HEAA TS
(a) HBALTHEE

AEEEABALTNEGRERERINEGS
EEABBERKKFE2SA -

AAFEBABALTHNEHAEREERINEE
BEXREMEFI7A

(b) ETEEBAENHE
AEEEEREHMFEZEBEAENHH O
T :

THE GROUP
rEE

2009 2008
HKs’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Short-term benefits EHER 31,173 33,017
Post-employment benefits ZEZBEF 1,069 1,179
32,242 34,196

The remuneration of directors and key management is determined

by the board of directors having regard to the performance of

individuals and market trends.

EERTIEEBAEBNFH I HESSRESR
RERTHBEMEE -

’3-1
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41. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third party (the "Vendor”)
pursuant to which the Group had agreed to sell certain investment
properties and prepaid lease payments and buildings of the Group
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$25,937,000 as at 31st August,
2009 at the aggregate consideration of HK$122,800,000. Pursuant to the
relevant agreement, on completion of the transaction on 26th February,
2010, the Group and the Vendor shall enter into a tenancy agreement to
lease back certain of those properties for a term of 3 years commencing
on the date of completion at a monthly rental of HK$421,000. The
consideration was arrived at after an arm’s length negotiation between
the Group and the Vendor with reference to a valuation carried out by an

independent property valuer on 31st August, 2009.

Details of these are set out in the announcement of the Company dated

13th November, 2009.

M. EERAREH
Fﬁﬁ % FEER-EBIE=H (EF))

AYEERSZ Bt AEEREHELAEE
WETREYE BEAEEREREF K=
ZENFENA =+ — B ERME A& 2 525,937,000
7 7T 0 #4K E 5122,800,0005% T © 1R 5 8 B 1%
FORZE—ZE_A-TARHZAXRS#%E
AEBRBEHFBSFTHESHUAEDZE T3Z
LY¥ BHEABAHABRTARH=F AHEA
4210008 T - RENDHAAEERES K2EH
UPEGEMR_ZZENENR=1T—HET
ZEERRAFRAERMEE -

FRFARERALAEHNAE-ZEZNFE+ A
T=HHAMHA -




SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION Bz SR & ¥l

Listing ¢ Listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited since 20th April, 1988

Stock Code 420
Board Lot ¢ 2,000
Par Value : HKS$0.20

Shares Issued 794,010,960

Financial Calendar 2009/2010

Financial year ended 31st August, 2009

Full year results announced 14th December, 2009
Register of members closed 22nd-28th January, 2010
Annual general meeting 29th January, 2010

2010 Interim results to be announced  Mid-May 2010

Closure of the Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday,
22nd January, 2010 to Thursday, 28th January, 2010, both days inclusive,

during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.

Shareholder Services

For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please contact the
Company'’s share registrar:

Tricor Secretaries Limited

26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel +852 2980 1766

Fax +852 2861 1465

Investor Relations
Ms Charmaine CHENG

Corporate Communications & Investor Relations Manager

Block A, 6/F, Eastern Sea Industrial Building

29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel +852 3478 7017

Email pr@fshl.com

Lt TEH-ANANFENEBEZTHRERE
BEHAERBMERATERLET
B% 40 4 5% 1420

BEEEM : 2,000

HE 10208 T

SEITIRE : 794,010,960
—EBEA—T-TEMBASE

MR EEREE —EZAENA=1+—H

2EEBE NG “EEAF+=ATIA

R EEER —E-EF—-A=+=H

Z-+N\H

BRRBFRE —E-ZF-HA=+NH
—E-ZF —E-ZFRAFE
FRERZEE N

TEMERMBAFELTFE
AAFABR=T-BF—A=+=H (EHEH) &
—2-2F-A=+/\B (2HM) L (BR@X
BEER) - DERERGBFENFE -

B% 5% BR %5

FAEERMBFERELNER » BEHKRQER
HBFERE :

SENERBERAR
EBEFERRER28TSERE L2061

BT 5E +852 2980 1766

{8 H +852 2861 1465

REEME
LIVl

EEARREERRLE
BBHA R EK29-3955
BT X REAETE

E 5 +8523478 7017

ZE I pr@fshl.com
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FOUNTAIN SET (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
RHEX (RE)ERAF]

Block A, 7/F, Eastern Sea Industrial Building,
29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung, %
New Territories, Hong Kong

559 R IEEIE 2 1420-30%%
SR T S A AL o

Tel E5E +852 2485 1881

Fountain Set has overseas marketing/representative offices in the following locations. Addresses, phone numbers and fax numbers
are listed at www.fshl.com

EHEERTIIMERGBINTIZHERNER/KRE, i, SFERBREEREHTIAEWWW.fshl.comiy
New York . Toronto _ Vancouver & Ho Chi Minh City R Seoul R Shanghai R Shenzhen . Singapore
#R%9 E4 e ImETE SR EL s FE Frnnsg
Production facilities are set up in the following countries:
R FIBRE B L e

The PRC , Indonesia 4 Sri Lanka
P ENfe TR+
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